
 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

TOWN HALL 

DUKE STREET 

BARROW-IN-FURNESS 

 
 

 
Monday 29th November, 2021 

 

To expedite the business of the meeting, Members are requested to give the  
Chief Executive adequate notice of any Amendment which they propose to raise. 

 
To:  The Members of Barrow Borough Council 
 
Madam Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL to be 

held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER at the TOWN HALL, BARROW on TUESDAY, 7TH 

DECEMBER, 2021 COMMENCING AT 5.30 PM for the transaction of the business 

specified below. 

 

 
 

Chief Executive 
_______________ 

 
Business 

 
1.   TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 

 

2.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 To deal with any items of business which the Chair decides should be considered 
as matters of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government 
Act 1972.  (Urgent business may only be taken by reason of special 
circumstances (which will be recorded in the minutes), and if the Chair of the 
meeting is of the opinion that the item should be considered as a matter of 
urgency). 
 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in respect of 
items on this Agenda and to consider any dispensations. 
 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting). 
 



 

 

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they have already declared in the Register,  as well as any other registrable 
or other interests.   
 

4.   MINUTES 
 

 To confirm the Minutes of the Council’s proceedings held on 19th October, 2021 
 

5.   ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 To receive any announcements from the Chair, Leader or Head of Paid Service. 
 

6.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or 
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later 
than 5pm two working days before the meeting. Information on how to make the 
application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s website 
www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (07825206525). 
  
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been received from 
members of the public 

  
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 
members of the public. 

 

7.   STATEMENT OF GAMBLING POLICY 
 

 To approve the Statement of Gambling Policy 2022-2025. 
 

8.   LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION - IMPLEMENTATION RESERVE 
 

 To consider a County-wide LGR Implementation Reserve. 
 

9.   COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW AND CHARTER TRUSTEES 
 

 To consider a report from the Community Governance Working Group. 
 

10.   (A)   TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES FROM THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEES AS 
CONTAINED IN MINUTE VOLUME AND CONSIDER 
RECOMMENDATIONS (WHERE NOT ALREADY DETERMINED ON THE 
AGENDA):- 

 

 (1) Planning (26th October and 16th November, 2021) 
(2) Licensing Regulatory (4th November, 2021 - cancelled) 
(3) Licensing (4th November, 2021) 
(4) Executive* (10th November) and 30th November, 2021 (Extraordinary 

Meeting) 
(5) Overview and Scrutiny (28th October and 2nd December, 2021) 
 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

 
*Recommendations from the Executive Committee on 10th November are 
dealt with under Agenda Item No. 7. 

 
(B) QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 

Council has agreed that time be set aside for questions to the Leader of the 
Council.  Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4 set out the procedure for questions 
to the Leader and the notice period required.  The Leader will also take any 
questions without notice relevant to the reports and minutes detailed on the 
agenda. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 
A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this Borough was held at the Town Hall, 
Barrow-in-Furness at 5.30 p.m. on Tuesday the 19th day of October 2021. 
 
PRESENT:- Councillor Wall (Mayor in the Chair) and Councillors Assouad, 
Biggins, Burley, Burns, Callister, D. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, Hamilton, Husband, 
Johnston, McLeavy, Mooney, Morgan, Nott, Pemberton, Preston, Robson, 
Ronson, Shirley, C. Thomson, M. A. Thomson, Tyson and Zaccarini. 
 
Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Chief Executive), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), Debbie Storr (Head 
of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), Jon Huck (Democratic Services 
Manager), Paula Westwood (Scrutiny & Democratic Services Team Leader) and 
Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer). 
 
31 – Minute’s Silence 
 
The Mayor requested Members to stand and observe a one minute’s silence as 
a mark of respect for Sir David Amess MP for Southend West who had sadly 
died after being stabbed at his Constituency Surgery in Essex on 15th October, 
2021. 
 
32 – Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence had been submitted from Councillors Blezard, Brook,    
H. Edwards, McClure, McEwan, Maddox and Roberts. 
 
33 – Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
34 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 27th July, 2021 were taken as read and 
confirmed. 
 
35 – Announcements 
 
The Head of Paid Service made the following announcements:- 
 
Local Government Reorganisation 
 
The regulations required that a legal instrument known as a Structural Change 
Order was required in respect of Local Government Reorganisation.  It was 
anticipated that the draft Structural Change Order would be received within the 
next few weeks which may require an Extraordinary meeting of Council to be 
called during November to consider the draft Order. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
Judicial Review 
 
The Head of Paid Service provided an update regarding the Judicial Review 
which Cumbria County Council was seeking in respect of Local Government 
Reform.  Service of the papers was expected.  
 
36 – Public Participation 
 
No questions, representations, deputations or petitions had been received in 
respect of the meeting. 
 
37 – Approval of Member Absence 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring Officer had submitted a 
report requesting Council to consider a request from Councillor Blezard for his 
absence from Council and Committee meetings to be authorised by the Council 
in accordance with section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
Section 85(1) of the Act requires Elected Members to have attended a qualifying 
meeting (generally a Council, Committee or Sub-Committee meeting) within six 
months of their last qualifying attendance.  The Act makes provision for leave of 
absence to be granted if approved by the Authority prior to the expiration of the 
six month period. 
 
Councillor Blezard, one of three Elected Members for the Dalton South Ward 
had been unable to attend a meeting for the reasons detailed within the report.  
His last attendance had been at a meeting of full Council on 21st April, 2021.  
Consequently, he had requested that Council approved a leave of absence up 
to and including 26th January, 2022. 
 
It was anticipated that Councillor Blezard’s colleagues within the Dalton South 
area would be able to support him in dealing with any matters that residents 
within the area may wish to raise, without the need to make any formal 
arrangements for temporary cover. 
 
Political Group Leaders had been consulted and had been supportive of the 
proposal. 
 
It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson and seconded by Councillor Robson 
and it was, 
 
RESOLVED:- To agree that, in accordance with section 85(1) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, Councillor Blezard’s absence from Council and 
Committee meetings up to and including 26th January, 2022 be authorised, for 
the reasons set out within the report. 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



 
38 – Appointment of Lead Member 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring Officer had submitted a 
report concerning a proposed change to the Lead Member appointment for 
Culture, Arts and Leisure arising from a request from Councillor Blezard to stand 
down as Lead Member for Culture, Arts and Leisure. 
 
It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson and seconded by Councillor 
Hamilton and it was, 
 
RESOLVED:- To appoint  Councillor Callister as the Lead Member for Culture, 
Arts and Leisure. 
 
39 – Officer Delegation Scheme 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring Officer had submitted a 
report seeking an update to the Delegation Scheme to reflect changes to Officer 
Structures. 
 
It had been noted that the report had been considered by the Executive 
Committee at their meeting on 13th October, 2021. 
 
The proposed changes had been indicated in a tracked changes version 
included as an appendix to the report. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor M. A. 
Thomson and it was, 
 
RESOLVED:- To approve the updated Officer Delegation Scheme within the 
Council Constitution as attached to the report. 
 
40 – Member Development Strategy 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring Officer had submitted a 
report seeking approval of the revised Member Development Strategy, a copy of 
which had been appended to the report. 
 
It had been noted that the strategy was reviewed on a biennial basis in 
conjunction with the Democratic Services Manager, the Democratic Services 
Officer (Member Support) and the Member Training Working Group. 
 
The overall aim of the strategy was to ensure continuation of effective Member 
Development and ensure that Member training and development was prioritised, 
planned and co-ordinated effectively.   
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor M. A. 
Thomson and it was,  
 
RESOLVED:- To approve the revised Member Development Strategy for 
2021/2023. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 
41 – Community Governance Review of Parishes in the Barrow Borough 

Council Area 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance presented the report which had sought 
Members’ views on whether or not they wished to consider a Community 
Governance Review (CGR) and if they did, to consider whether that should 
include the whole or part of the Borough Area.  In addition, Members had been 
requested to consider if they wished to set up a Working Group to consider a 
CGR with a view to a terms of reference being presented back to Council to 
consider. 
 
It had been noted that the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007 had transferred full responsibility for Parish reviews, now called 
Community Governance Reviews, to principal Council’s in England. 
 
A CGR is the process used to consider whether existing Parish or unparished 
arrangements should be changed in any way.  That may consider the creation, 
abolition, merging or alteration of Parish Councils and any subsequent electoral 
arrangements.  New Parishes may be created as a result of the geography of 
the area, the make-up of the local community, or sense of identity.  All Parishes 
must fall within the existing Borough boundary. 
 
A new Parish Council would be able to hold any relevant historic property, 
including those of a civic and ceremonial nature, hold and manage land and 
buildings, ranging from allotments through to community buildings and assets 
and potentially develop and support new community services. 
 
Parish Councils would also be able to perform functions on behalf of other Local 
Authorities.  Any new Parish or Town Council created as a result of a CGR could 
therefore perform functions on behalf of the new unitary of East Cumbria (once it 
had been created).  It would be a matter for the new Unitary Council to decide 
which, if any, functions it wanted a Parish or Town Council to carry out and it 
would be a matter for the Parish or Town Council to decide which functions it 
wished to take on. 
 
CGRs generally have a 12 month period for completion and to ensure that 
appropriate consultation and consideration could be applied, it was not 
considered possible to compete the review process ahead of the Structural 
Change Order (SCO) being made, and that the deadline for any elections to 
potential new Parishes in May 2022 would not be met. 
 
Whilst still awaiting the SCO, it was anticipated that Parish elections would 
remain in May 2023.  If that was the case and a CGR was underway then any 
CGR recommendations could be considered by the Shadow Authority for 
potential implementation through the May 2023 elections. 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



 
The other consideration was Charter Trustees which were sometimes secured 
as part of the structural change process.  These protect the continuity of a 
Borough Charter until such time as a Parish Council is established.  Duties of 
these would be limited to ceremonial activities such as the election of a Mayor 
and various other functions depending on local customs and law. 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance advised Council that enquiries continued to 
be raised with Ministers on the above points. 
 
It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson and seconded by Councillor 
Hamilton and it was, 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To agree to look into conducting a Community Governance Review in 

accordance with the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007 and whether this should be for the whole Borough or the 
unparished area of the Borough; and 

2. To agree to the establishment of a cross party Community Governance 
Working Group (CGWG) comprising of five Members (three Labour and 
two Conservative Members), to consider the practicalities of any such 
review, Terms of Reference and timetable for CGR for recommendation to 
Full Council. 

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 
 
42 – Planning 
 
It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the minutes of the meetings of the Planning Committee held 
on 10th August, 14th September and 5th October, 2021 be received. 
 
43 – Licensing Regulatory/Licensing 
 
Councillor Callister advised that the meeting of the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee scheduled to take place on 9th September, 2021 and the meetings 
of the Licensing Committee scheduled to take place on 9th September and 7th 
October, 2021 had been cancelled. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister, and  
 
RESOLVED:- That the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee held on 7th October, 2021 be received. 
 
44 – Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister, and 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 
RESOLVED:-  That the minutes of the meetings of the Licensing Sub-
Committee held on 12th August and 9th September, 2021 be received. 
 
45 – Executive 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton, and  
 
RESOLVED:- That the minutes of the meetings of the Executive Committee held 
on 15th September and 13th October, 2021 be received and that each of the 
recommendations contained therein had been dealt with under Agenda Item 
Nos. 9 and 10 as outlined in Minute Nos. 39 and 40 above. 
 
46 – Audit and Governance 
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the minutes of the meetings of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 29th July, 18th August and 30th September, 2021 be 
received. 
 
47 – Overview and Scrutiny 
 
It was moved by Councillor McLeavy, and 
 
RESOLVED:-  That the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 21st September, 2021 be received. 
 
48 – Questions to the Leader of the Council 
 
No questions had been submitted to the Leader of the Council under notice as 
required by Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4. 
 
At the meeting Councillor Pemberton had asked the Leader what the position 
was regarding the House of Lords building on Abbey Road.  He had asked for 
an update on a number of occasions and at an Executive Committee meeting he 
had been advised that it was a complex matter and that he would receive an 
update outside of the meeting, but he had still not received an update.  He was 
concerned that the building had remained in a state of disrepair for a long period 
of time and was unsightly. 
 
The Leader of the Council advised that the Council were not the owners of the 
building and so were unable to do anything without the owner’s consent.  She 
added that through the Heritage Action Zone, there were plans to conduct a 
feasibility study on the building to determine possible future uses of the site. 
 
49 – Notice of Motion under Rule 11 
 
The following motion had been moved by Councillor Shirley and Seconded by 
Councillor Ronson, signed and submitted to the Council with Notice under Rule 
11:- 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



 
That Barrow Borough Council:- 
 
(i) Acknowledges the efforts that this Council has made to reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions and promote renewable energy; 
 

(ii) Further recognises: 
 

     That very large financial setup and running costs involved in 
selling locally generated renewable electricity to local customers 
result in it being impossible for local renewable electricity 
generators to do so; 

 

     That making these financial costs proportionate to the scale of 
renewable electricity supplier’s operation would create 
significant opportunities for local companies, community groups 
and Councils to be providers of locally generated renewable 
electricity directly to local people, businesses and organisations, 
if they wished; and 

 

     That revenues received by such local companies, community 
groups and Councils that chose to become local renewable 
electricity providers could be used to help improve the local 
economy, local services and facilities and to reduce local 
greenhouse gas emissions; 

 

(iii) Notes that the House of Commons Environmental Audit Committee, 
as a result of its 2021 Technological Innovations and Climate 
Change Inquiry, recommended that a Right to Local Supply for local 
energy suppliers be established to address this; 
 

(iv) Accordingly resolves to support the Local Electricity Bill, currently 
supported by a cross-party group of 263 MPs and which, if made 
law, would establish a Right to Local Supply, if they wished, which 
would promote local renewable electricity supply by making the 
setup and running cost of selling renewable electricity to local 
customers proportionate to the size of the supply company; and 

 

(v) Further resolves to: 
 

     Inform the local media of this decision; 
 

     Write to local Simon Fell MP, notifying him of this resolution and 
to commit to work together with him in pursuit of a Local 
Electricity Bill; and 

 

     Write to the organisers of the campaign for the Bill, Power for 
People (at Camden Collective, 5-7 Buck Street, London NW1 
8NJ or info@powerforpeople.org.uk) expressing its support. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

mailto:info@powerforpeople.org.uk


 
The motion had been duly seconded by Councillor Ronson, a vote was taken on 
the motion and it was, 
 
RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree to support the motion. 
 
The meeting closed at 6.04 pm. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council 

Council 

7 December 2021 

Statement of Gambling Policy 
 

 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Graham Barker, Ivor Churcher 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Gambling Act 2005 requires that the Council develops, consults on and 

publishes a statement of the principles that they propose to apply in exercising 

their functions under the Act during the three-year period to which the policy 

applies. 

 

1.2 The 6 district councils continue to work together to share best practice in an 

effort to ensure, so far as practicable, consistency of approach across Cumbria. 

The draft policy broadly aligns with Eden and South Lakeland District Councils’ 

Statement of Gambling policies. 

 

1.3 This report confirms that the consultation on the revised Statement of Gambling 

has been undertaken and concluded on 24th October 2021. No responses were 

received. The revised draft Statement of Gambling Policy is attached at 

APPENDIX 1. Only minor amendments have been made to the revised policy. 

Any revisions made to the existing policy must be published in a revised policy 

no later than 3rd January, 2022. 

 

1.4 The draft policy was considered by Executive Committee on the 10th November 

2021 who recommend the Council approve the Barrow Borough Council - 

Statement of Gambling Policy 2022 – 2025.  

 

2.0  Recommendation  

It is recommended that Council approve the Barrow Borough Council - 

Statement of Gambling Policy 2022 – 2025. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 requires that the Council develops, 

consults on, and publishes a statement of the principles that they propose to 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



apply in exercising their functions under the Act during the three-year period to 

which the policy applies.   

 

3.2 The Gambling Act created the three licensing objectives which form the 

foundation of the regime. The Statement of Policy must state and promote these 

objectives; 

 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 

associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime, 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling. 

 

The statement should also state that the licensing authority shall aim to permit 

the use of premises for gambling as set out in Section 153 of the Act.  

 

3.3 The Gambling Act 2005 covers all premises that allow commercial gambling, 

which includes: 

 Bookmakers 

 Horse tracks 

 Dog tracks 

 Casinos 

 Amusement arcades; and 

 Pubs and bars that have gaming machines 

 

3.4 When making deliberations Licensing Committee Members must have regard to 

this Statement of Gambling Policy together with the statutory guidance issued by 

the Gambling Commission. 

 

3.5 Both national and local consultations on the revised draft Statement of Gambling 

Policy have concluded. No responses were received.  

 

3.6 Only minor amendments have been made to the revised Statement of Gambling 

Policy (APPENDIX 1), these are highlighted in red. Any revisions made to the 

existing policy must be published in a revised policy no later than 3rd January, 

2022. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

  
4.1 In preparing a statement or revision the licensing authority must consult: 
 

a) the chief officer of police for the authority's area, or 
b) one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority's area, and 
c) one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority's 
functions under this Act. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



 
4.2 A national and local consultation has been undertaken and concluded on 24th 

October 2021. The policy was also available on the Council’s website as part of 

the public consultation. A full list of consultees is shown at APPENDIX 2. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 No. The Council are under a legal duty to prepare and publish a statement of the 

principles that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under the 

Gambling Act 2005. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Priority 1. People - Enabling residents to live happy, healthy productive lives. 

 Priority 2. Place - Creating a vibrant, safe & welcoming place where people want 

to live. 

 Priority 3. Prosperity - Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our 

residents. 

 

6.2 Health and Well-being 

The policy has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of users of this 
service. The review of the Statement of Gambling Policy could improve health 
and reduce health inequalities, by setting the expectations on each of the 
licensing objectives which may have an impact on the health of a resident. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 None 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 Include details of any legal implications 

 

Section 349(1) of the Gambling Act 2005 requires that the Council prepares and 

publishes a statement of the principles that they propose to apply in exercising 

their functions under the Act during the three-year period to which the policy 

applies. 

 

S.349(2) requires the Council to consult with those persons listed under s.349(3) 

 

The Statement must be produced following consultation with those bodies and 

persons set out in s.349(3) of the Act.  Regulations made by the Secretary of 

State prescribe the form of the Statements and the procedure to be followed in 

relation to them and their publications. 

 

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes 
 
The policy has no detrimental impact on service users showing any of the 

protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation. 

 

7.3 The policy has no adverse effect on the Human Rights of individuals. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Not adopting the policy. The Council are under a 

legal duty to prepare 

and publish a statement 

of the principles that 

they propose to apply in 

exercising their 

functions under the 

Gambling Act 2005.  

The revised policy must 

be consulted upon and 

adopted by Council, 

before 3rd January 2022. 

 

Contact Officers  

Graham Barker gebarker@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Draft Statement of Gambling Policy 

2  List of Consultees 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of 

Background 

document  

Where it is available  

Gambling 

Commission – 

Guidance to Local 

Authorities 

 

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-

to-licensing-authorities  

  

Page 16

Agenda Item 7

mailto:gebarker@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities


 

 
1 

 

  
 

 
 
 
 

Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 
 
 

Gambling Act 2005 
 
 
 

For the period 202219-202522 

 
 
 

Version Control 

Document Name: Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy – for the period 202219 - 202522 

Version: 0109202118.1 

Author: Public Protection Manager 

Approved by: Full Council 

Date Approved: 11th December, 2018 

Review Date: July 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
2 

Contents 

 

Preface 44 

Part A 55 

1. The Licensing Objectives 55 

2. Introduction 55 

3. Declaration 77 

4. Responsible Authorities 88 

5. Interested Parties 88 

6. Exchange of Information 99 

7. Enforcement 1010 

8. Licensing Authority Functions 1111 

9.  Local Risk assessments 1212 

10.  Local area profile 1313 

Part B - Premises Licences  1515 

11. General Principles 1515 

12. Adult Gaming Centres 2121 

13. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres (FEC) 2222 

14. Casinos 2423 

15. Bingo Premises 2525 

16. Betting Premises 2726 

17. Tracks 2828 

18. Travelling Fairs 3130 

19. Provisional Statements 3130 

20. Reviews 3231 

21 Rights of appeal and judicial review – Premises Licences 3332 

Part C - Permits / Temporary & Occasional Use Notice 3736 

21. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits 3736 

22. (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits 3837 

23. Prize Gaming Permits 3938 

24. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 4039 

 

Appendix 1 - List of Consultees 4644 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
3 

Appendix 2 - Responsible Authorities 4947 

Appendix 3 - Categories of Gaming Machines 5149 

Appendix 4 - Delegation of Functions 5351 

Appendix 5 - Map of the District 5553 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
If you would like a copy of this document please could you contact us by calling 01229 876543 
or email us at commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk 
 
Contact Information  
Public Protection Manager  
Public Protection Services,  
Town Hall,  
Duke Street,  
Barrow in Furness,  
Cumbria,  
LA14 2LD  
Tel: 01229 876543  
E-mail: commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk 
  
Further copies may be obtained from the Council’s website: - www.barrowbc.gov.uk 

  

This Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy will be reported to Full Council in December 
202118 and published on or before the 3rd January 202219 

All references to the “Guidance” refers to the Gambling Commission Guidance: 
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities  (5th 
Edition dated SeptemberApril 2021 2015 – updated May 2021September 2016). 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

mailto:commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities


 

 
4 

Preface 
 

The Gambling Act 2005 (‘the act) contains the regulatory system to govern the provision of all 
gambling in Great Britain, other than the National Lottery and spread Betting.  It received Royal 
Assessment on 7th April 2005.  
 
The Gambling Commission (the Commission) is the unified regulator for gambling in Great 
Britain.  
 
The Commission does not regulate spread betting, which remains the responsibility of the 
Financial Services Authority; nor the National Lottery, which is regulated by the National Lottery 
Commission.  However, the National Lottery Commission has been co-located with the 
Gambling Commission since January 2012 and the Public Bill includes legislation to merge the 
two Commissions.  
 
The Commission has responsibility for granting operating and personal licences for commercial 
gambling operators and personnel working in the industry.  It also regulates certain lottery 
managers and promoters. The Act sets out different types of operating licence that cover the full 
range of commercial gambling activities conducted in Great Britain.  It also makes provision for 
the Commission to have powers of entry and inspection to regulate gambling, with safeguards 
for those subject to the powers.  
 
Licensing Authorities license gambling premises within their area, as well as undertaking 
functions in relation to lower stake gaming machines in club and miner’s welfare institutes.  The 
Act also provides a system of temporary and occasional use notices.  These authorised 
premises that are not licensed generally for gambling purposes to be used for certain type of 
gambling, for limited periods.   
 
Allerdale Borough Council, Barrow Borough Council, Carlisle City Council, Copeland Borough 
Council, Eden District Council and South Lakeland District Council continue to work together to 
share best practice in an effort to ensure, so far as practicable, consistency of approach across 
Cumbria. . This statement of policy sets out the principles that Barrow Borough Council propose 
to apply in exercising its functions under the Gambling Act 2005, in particular for managing the 
expectations in relation to operators with premises in the locality. Under the Gambling Act 2005, 
each local authority is required to prepare and publish their statement of policy every three 
years which must be consulted on. 
  

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
5 

Part A 

1. The Licensing Objectives 

1.1 In exercising most of their functions 
under the Act, licensing authorities 
must have regard to the licensing 
objectives as set out in section 1 of 
the Act.  The licensing objectives are: 

• Preventing gambling from being 
a source of crime or disorder, 
being associated with crime or 
disorder or being used to 
support crime 

• Ensuring that gambling is 
conducted in a fair and open 
way 

• Protecting children and other 
vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling 

1.2 It should be noted that the 
Commission has stated: “The 
requirement in relation to children is 
explicitly to protect them from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling”. 

1.3 This licensing authority is aware that, 
in making decisions about premises 
licences and temporary use notices it 
should aim to permit the use of 
premises for gambling in so far as it 
thinks it: 

• in accordance with any relevant 
code of practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission 

• in accordance with any relevant 
guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission  

• reasonably consistent with the 
licensing objectives and 

• in accordance with the 
authority’s statement of licensing 
policy. 

 Authorised Activities 

1.4 ‘Gambling’ is defined in the Act as 
either gambling, betting or taking part 
in a lottery: 

• ‘gaming’ means playing a game 
of chance for a prize; 

• ‘betting’ means making or 
accepting a bet on the outcome 
of a race, competition, or any 
other event; the likelihood of 
anything occurring or not 
occurring; or whether anything is 
true or not true; 

• A ‘lottery’ is where persons are 
required to pay in order to take 
part in an arrangement, during 
the course of which one or more 
prizes are allocated by a 
process which relies wholly on 
chance. 

1.5 Private gaming in private dwellings 
and on domestic occasions is exempt 
from licensing or registration 
providing that no charge is made for 
participating; only equal chance 
gaming takes place; and it does not 
occur in a place to which the public 
have access.  Domestic betting 
between inhabitants of the same 
premises or between employees of 
the same employer is also exempt. 

1.6 Non-commercial gaming and betting 
(where no parts of the proceeds are 
for private gain) may be subject to 
certain exemptions.  Further advice 
should be sought from the Council’s 
Licensing Team where appropriate. 

2. Introduction 

Barrow Borough Council is situated in 
the County of Cumbria, which 
contains 6 District Councils in total.  
The Council area has a population of 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
6 

approximately 66,800 and covers an 
area of 7700 hectares which is mainly 
urban in nature. Barrow-in-Furness is 
the main town with smaller towns and 
villages of Dalton-in-Furness (the 
ancient capital of Furness), Askam-in-
Furness, Ireleth, Newton, Lindal, 
Rampside and Marton making up the 
other centres of population, the 
population profile % for residents in 
the Borough is illustrated below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Office for National Statistics 
(ONS) – 2018 Projections1 

 

 

1 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommun
ity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/data
sets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2  

Over the next few decades, the age 
profile of residents in the Borough is 
expected to change dramatically. 
Barrow-in-Furness is projected to 
show the largest population decrease 
of 3,000 (4.5%) over the 10 years to 
mid-2028. This fall is consistent with 
past trends as the population in this 
area has shown a generally steady 
decrease from mid-2002 onwards. 
However, the percentage of the 
population aged 65 and over is 
projected to increase by 1500 
(10.3%) by mid-2028. (ONS 
Population Projections for England 
20182) 

2.1 A map of the Council’s area is 
included at Appendix 5.  The key 
provided identifies the urban/rural 
areas.   

2.2 Licensing authorities are required by 
the Gambling Act 2005 to publish a 
statement of the principles which they 
proposed to apply when exercising 
their functions.  This statement must 
be published at least every three 
years.  The statement must also be 
reviewed from “time to time” and any 
amended parts re-consulted upon.  
The statement must be then re-
published. 

2.3 Barrow Borough Council consulted 
widely upon this statement before 
finalising and publishing.  A list of 
those persons this authority consulted 
is provided at Appendix 1. 

 

 

2 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommun
ity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/data
sets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2  

Population Barrow Borough Council 
Area 

Broad age 
Group 

Count 
% of 
total 

0-145  11,10010,753 16.27% 

156-24 7,1006,877 10.46% 

25-49 19,90019,184 28.99.8% 

50-64 14,20014,683 22.11.2% 

65+ 14,50014,794 22.31.7% 

Total 66,290  

Page 22

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2


 

 
7 

2.4 The Gambling Act requires that the 
following parties are consulted by 
Licensing Authorities: 

• The Chief Officer of Police; 

• One or more persons who appear 

to the authority to represent the 

interests of persons carrying on 

gambling businesses in the 

authority’s area; 

• One or more persons who appear 

to the authority to represent the 

interests of persons who are likely 

to be affected by the exercise of 

the authority’s functions under the 

Gambling Act 2005. 

   

2.5 The full list of comments made and 
the consideration by the Council of 
those comments is available by 
request to the person named below. 

2.6 The policy was approved at a 
meeting of the Full Council on 15th 
December 2015XX XXXXXXXX 
XXXX.  It was published on our 
website.  Copies are have been sent 
to the public libraries in the District as 
well as being available at the Town 
Hall, Duke Street, Barrow-in-
Furness.. 

2.7 Should you have any queries 
regarding this policy statement please 
send them via e-mail or letter to the 
following contact: 

Name: Graham Barker   

Address: Public Protection Services, 
Town Hall, Duke Street, Barrow-in-
Furness. LA14 2 LD  

E-mail: commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk Tel: 01229 876543  

2.8 It should be noted that this policy 
statement will not override the right of 
any person to make an application, 
make representations about an 

application, or apply for a review of a 
licence, as each will be considered on 
its own merits and according to the 
statutory requirements of the 
Gambling Act 2005.  

 

3. Declaration 

3.1 In producing the final statement, this 
licensing authority declares that it has 
had regard to the licensing objectives 
of the Gambling Act 2005, the 
Guidance to the Licensing Authorities 
issued by the Gambling Commission, 
and any responses from those 
consulted on the statement. 

  

Page 23

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

mailto:commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

 
8 

4. Responsible Authorities 

4.1 The licensing authority is required by 
regulations to state the principles it 
will apply in exercising its powers 
under Section 157(h) of the Act to 
designate, in writing, a body which is 
competent to advise the authority 
about the protection of children from 
harm.  The principles are: 

• the need for the body to be 

responsible for an area covering 

the whole of the licensing 

authority’s area; and 

• The need for the body to be 

answerable to democratically 

elected persons, rather than any 

particular vested interest group.   

4.2 In accordance with the suggestion in 
the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance to local authorities, this 
authority has consulted with both the 
Cumbria Safeguarding Children 
Board and Cumbria County Council 
Children’s Services.  This Authority 
considers that Cumbria County 
Council Children’s Services is best 
able to fulfil the role of advising the 
Authority about the protection of 
children from harm for the purposes 
of Section 157(b) of the Act. 

4.3 The contact details of all the 
Responsible Authorities under the 
Gambling Act 2005 are available via 
the Council’s website at: 
www.barrowbc.gov.uk  and are listed 
at Appendix 2. 

 

5. Interested Parties 

5.1 Interested parties can make 
representations about licence 
applications, or apply for a review of 
an existing licence.  These parties are 
defined in the Gambling Act 2005 as 
follows: 

“For the purposes of this Part a 
person is an interested party in 
relation to an application for or in 
respect of a premises licence if, in the 
opinion of the licensing authority 
which issues the licence or to which 
the applications is made, the person: 

a) lives sufficiently close to the 
premises to be likely to be 
affected by the authorised 
activities, 

b) has business interests that might 
be affected by the authorised 
activities, or 

c) represents persons who satisfy 
paragraph (a) or (b)” 

5.2 The licensing authority is required by 
regulations to state the principles it 
will apply in exercising its powers 
under the Gambling Act 2005 to 
determine whether a person is an 
interested party.   

5.3 This authority will not apply a rigid 
rule to its decision making and each 
case will be decided upon its merits.  
It will consider the examples of 
considerations provided in the 
Gambling Commission’s Guidance for 
local authorities at Paragraphs 8.12 
to 8.17.   

5.4 It will also consider the Gambling 
Commission's Guidance that "has 
business interests" should be given 
the widest possible interpretation and 
include partnerships, charities, faith 
groups and medical practices. 

5.5 The Gambling Commission has 
recommended that the licensing 
authority states that interested parties 
may include trade associations and 
trade unions, and residents’ and 
tenants’ associations.  This authority 
will not however generally view these 
bodies as interested parties unless 
they represent a member who can be 

Page 24

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

 
9 

classed as an interested person 
under the terms of the Gambling Act 
2005 i.e. lives sufficiently close to the 
premises to be likely to be affected by 
the activities being applied for. 

5.6 Interested parties can be persons 
who are democratically elected such 
as Councillors and MP’s.  No specific 
evidence of being asked to represent 
an interested person will be required 
as long as the Councillor/MP 
represents the ward likely to be 
affected.  Likewise, Parish Councils 
likely to be affected will be considered 
to be interested parties.  Other than 
these however, this authority will 
generally require written evidence 
that a person/body (e.g. an 
advocate/relative) ‘represents’ 
someone who either lives sufficiently 
close to the premises to be likely to 
be affected by the authorised 
activities and/or has business 
interests that might be affected by the 
authorised activities.  A letter from 
one of these persons, requesting the 
representation is likely to be 
sufficient. 

5.7 If individuals wish to approach 
Councillors to ask them to represent 
their views then care should be taken 
that the Councillors are not a Member 
of the Licensing Committee dealing 
with the licence application.  If there 
are any doubts then please contact 
the Council’s Licensing Department. 

 

6. Exchange of Information 

6.1 Licensing Authorities are required to 
include in their statements the 
principles to be applied by the 
authority in exercising the functions 
under sections 29 and 30 of the Act 
with respect to the exchange of 
information between it and the 
Gambling Commission, and the 
functions under section 350 of the Act 

with respect to the exchange of 
information between it and the other 
persons listed in Schedule 6 to the 
Act. 

6.2 The principle that this licensing 
authority applies is that it will act in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Gambling Act 2005 in its exchange of 
information which includes the 
provision that the Data Protection Act 
1998 will not be contravened.  The 
licensing authority will also have 
regard to any Guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission on this matter, 
as well as any relevant regulations 
issued by the Secretary of State 
under the powers provided in the 
Gambling Act 2005.  

6.3 Should any protocols be established 
as regards information exchange with 
other bodies then they will be made 
available.  This authority will normally 
share the information it holds about 
licensed premises with the following 
persons or bodies:  

• A constable or police force  

• an enforcement officer  

• another Licensing Authority  

• HMRC  

• The Gambling Appeal Tribunal  

• The Secretary of State  

• Scottish Ministers  

The Licensing Authority will also 
exchange information as per section 
13 of the 4th edition Guidance issued 
to Local Authorities.  

  

Page 25

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
10 

7. Enforcement 

7.1 Licensing authorities are required by 
regulation under the Gambling Act 
2005 to state the principles to be 
applied by the authority in exercising 
the functions under Part 15 of the Act 
with respect to the inspection of 
premises; and the powers in the Act 
to institute criminal proceedings in 
respect of the offences specified. 

7.2 This licensing authority’s principles 
are that: 

It will be guided by the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance for local 
authorities and will endeavour to be: 

• Proportionate: regulators should 

only intervene when necessary:  

remedies should be appropriate to 

the risk posed, and costs 

identified and minimised; 

• Accountable:  regulators must be 

able to justify decisions, and be 

subject to public scrutiny; 

• Consistent:  rules and standards 

must be joined up and 

implemented fairly; 

• Transparent:  regulators should 

be open, and keep regulations 

simple and user friendly; and 

• Targeted:  regulation should be 

focused on the problem, and 

minimise side effects. 

7.3 As per the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance to Licensing Authorities, 
this licensing authority will endeavour 
to avoid duplication with other 
regulatory regimes so far as possible. 

7.4 This licensing authority has adopted 
and implemented a risk-based 
inspection programme, based on; 

• The licensing objectives 

• Relevant codes of practice 

• Guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission, in particular at Part 

36 

• The principles set out in this 

statement of licensing policy 

7.5 This may include test purchasing 
activities to measure the compliance 
of licensed operators with aspects of 
the Gambling Act.  When undertaking 
test purchasing activities, this 
licensing authority will undertake to 
liaise with the Gambling Commission 
and the operator to determine what 
other, if any, test purchasing 
schemes may already be in place.  
Irrespective of the actions of an 
operator on their overall estate, test 
purchasing may be deemed to be an 
appropriate course of action. 

7.6 The main enforcement and 
compliance role for this licensing 
authority in terms of the Gambling Act 
2005 is to ensure compliance with the 
premises licences and other 
permissions which it authorises.  The 
Gambling Commission will be the 
enforcement body for the operating 
and personal licences.  It is also 
worth noting that concerns about 
manufacture, supply or repair of 
gaming machines are not dealt with 
by the licensing authority but should 
be notified to the Gambling 
Commission. 

7.7 This licensing authority also keeps 
itself informed of developments as 
regards the work of the Better 
Regulation Delivery Office in its 
consideration of the Regulatory 
functions of local authorities. 

7.8 Bearing in mind the principle of 
transparency, this licensing 
authority’s enforcement policy is 
available upon request to the 
licensing department. 

  

Page 26

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
11 

8. Licensing Authority Functions 

 Local Authorities 

8.1 Licensing Authorities are required 
under the Act to: 

• Be responsible for the licensing of 

premises where gambling 

activities are to take place by 

issuing Premises Licences 

• Issue Provisional Statements 

• Regulate members’ clubs and 

miners’ welfare institutes who 

wish to undertake certain gaming 

activities via issuing Club Gaming 

Permits and/or Club Machine 

Permits 

• Issue Club Machine Permits to 

Commercial Clubs 

• Grant permits for the use of 

certain lower stake gaming 

machines at unlicensed Family 

Entertainment Centres 

• Receive notifications from alcohol 

licensed premises (under the 

Licensing Act 2003) for the use of 

two or fewer gaming machines 

• Issue Licensed Premises Gaming 

Machine Permits for premises 

licensed to sell/supply alcohol for 

consumption on the licensed 

premises, under the Licensing Act 

2003, where there are more than 

two machines 

• Register small society lotteries 

below prescribed thresholds 

• Issue Prize Gaming Permits 

• Receive and Endorse Temporary 

Use Notices 

• Receive Occasional Use Notices 

• Provide information to the 

Gambling Commission regarding 

details of licences issued (see 

section above on ‘information 

exchange) 

• Maintain registers of the permits 

and licences that are issued under 

these functions 

• Exercise its powers of compliance 

and enforcement under the Act, in 

partnership with the Gambling 

Commission and other relevant 

responsible authorities. 

It should be noted that licensing 
authorities are not involved in 
licensing remote gambling at all, 
which is regulated by the Gambling 
Commission via operating licences. 

 The Gambling Commission 

8.2 The Gambling Commission regulates 
gambling in the public interest.  It 
does so by keeping crime out of 
gambling; by ensuring that gambling 
is conducted in a fair and open way; 
and by protecting children and 
vulnerable people.  The Commission 
provides independent advice to the 
Government about the matter in 
which gambling is carried out, the 
effects of gambling and the 
regulations of gambling generally. 

8.3 The Commission has issued 
guidance under Section 25 of the Act 
about the manner in which licensing 
authorities exercise their licensing 
functions under the Act and, in 
particular, the principles to be 
applied. 

8.4 The Commission has also issued 
Codes of Practice under Section 24 
about the way in which facilities for 
gambling is provided, which may also 
include provisions about the 
advertising of gambling facilities. 

8.5 The Gambling Commission can be 
contacted at: 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
12 

 Gambling Commission 
 Victoria Square House 
 Victoria Square 
 Birmingham 
 B2 4BP 
 Website:
 www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 
 Email: 
 info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

 

9.  Local Risk assessments  
 
9.1 The Commission’s Licence 

Conditions and Code of Practice 
(LCCP) which were revised and 
published in February 2015 
formalisedformalise the need for 
operators to consider local risks. 

9.2 Social Responsibility (SR) code 10.1 
requires licensees to assess the local 
risk to the licensing objectives posed 
by the provision of gambling facilities 
at each of their premises, and have 
policies, procedures and control 
measures to mitigate those risks.  In 
undertaking their risk assessments, 
they must take into account relevant 
matters identified in this policy 
statement.  

9.3 Licensees are required to undertake 
a local risk assessment when 
applying for a new premises licence.  
Their risk assessment must also be 
updated:  

• When applying for a variation of a 

premises licence  

• To take account of significant 

changes in local circumstances, 

including those identified in this 

policy statement 

• Where there are significant 

changes at a licensee’s premises 

that may affect their mitigation of 

local risks.  

9.4 The SR provision is supplemented by 
an ordinary code provision that 
requires licensees to share their risk 
assessment with the licensing 
authority when applying for a 
premises licence or applying for a 
variation to existing licensed 
premises, or otherwise at the request 
of the Licensing Authority.  Both 
provisions take effect from 6th April 
2016.  

9.5 Where concerns do exists, perhaps 
promoted by new or existing risks, 
the Licensing Authority will request 
that the licensee share a copy of its 
own risk assessment which will set 
out the measures the licensee has in 
place to address specific concerns.  
This practice should reduce the 
occasions on which a premises 
review and the imposition of license 
conditions are required.  

9.6 Where this policy statement sets out 
its approach to regulation with clear 
reference to local risks, the licensing 
authority will facilitate operators being 
able to better understand the local 
environment and therefore 
proactively mitigate risks to the 
licensing objectives.  In some 
circumstances, it might be 
appropriate to offer the licensee the 
opportunity to volunteer specific 
conditions that could be attached to 
the premises licence.  

  

Page 28

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
mailto:info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk


 

 
13 

10.  Local area profile  

10.1 The Licensing Authority have found it 
useful to complete their own 
assessment of the local environment 
as a means of ‘mapping out’ local 
areas of concern, which will be 
reviewed and updated to reflect 
changes to the local landscape.  
Such an assessment is known as the 
local area profile.  There is no 
statutory duty on the Licensing 
Authority to complete an area profile, 

but there are significant benefits for 
both the Licensing Authority and 
Operators, in having a better 
awareness of the local area and 
risks.  Importantly, risk in this context 
includes potential and actual risk, 
thereby taking into account possible 
future emerging risks, rather than 
reflecting current risks only.   

10.2 Maps showing gambling premises, 
Local Secondary Schools and Post 
16 Colleges in the Barrow Area.

 

 

Barrow-in-Furness Area 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dalton-in-Furness 

 

KEY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Gambling Premises    Secondary Schools & Colleges (Post 16) 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
15 

Part B - Premises Licences 

 

11. General Principles 

11.1 Premises licences are subject to the 
requirements set out in the Act and 
regulations, as well as specific 
mandatory and default conditions 
which will be detailed in regulations 
issued by the Secretary of State.  The 
licensing authority is able to exclude 
default conditions and also attach 
others, where it is believed to be 
appropriate 

11.2 This Licensing Authority is aware 
that in making decisions about 
premises licences it should aim to 
permit the use of premises for 
gambling in so far as it thinks it: 

• in accordance with any relevant 
code of practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission; 

• in accordance with any relevant 
guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission; 

• reasonably consistent with the 
licensing objectives; and 

• In accordance with the 
authority’s statement of 
licensing policy. 

11.3 This authority will not regard moral 
objections to gambling as a valid 
reason to reject applications for 
premises licences (except as regards 
any 'no casino resolution' - see 
section on Casinos below) and also 
acknowledges that unmet demand is 
not a criterion for a licensing authority 
to consider. Further, the authority is 
under a duty not to take other 
irrelevant matters into consideration 
eg; the likelihood of an applicant 

obtaining Planning Permission (see 
11.11) 

11.4 This Licensing Authority also notes 
the Gambling Commission guidance 
on the Social Responsibility Code. 
The LCCP requires (Social 
Responsibility Code Provision 9) that 
gaming machines are only made 
available in combination with the 
named non-remote activity of the 
operating licence. So, unless a betting 
premises operator offers substantive 
facilities for non-remote betting it 
should not make gaming machines 
available for use on the premises in 
question. 

 

11.5 Definition of “premises” – In the 
Act, premises is defined as including 
“any place”.   Section 152 therefore 
prevents more than one premises 
license applying to any place.  But a 
single building could be subject to 
more than one premises licence, 
provided they are for different parts of 
the building and the different parts of 
the building can be reasonably 
regarded as being different premises.  
This approach has been taken to 
allow large, multiple unit premises 
such as a pleasure park, pier, track or 
shopping mall to obtain discrete 
premises licences, where appropriate 
safeguards are in place.  However, 
licensing authorities should pay 
particular attention if there are issues 
about sub-divisions of a single 
building or plot and should ensure 
that mandatory conditions relating to 
access between premises are 
observed. 

11.6 In most cases the expectation is that 
a single building/plot will be the 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
16 

subject of an application for a licence, 
for example, 32 High Street.  But, that 
does not mean 32 High Street cannot 
be the subject of separate premises 
licences for the basement and ground 
floor, if they are configured 
acceptably.  Whether different parts of 
a building can properly be regarded 
as being separate premises will 
depend on the circumstances.  The 
location of the premises will clearly be 
an important consideration and the 
suitability of the division is likely to be 
a matter for discussion between the 
operator and the licensing officer.  
However, the Commission does not 
consider that areas of a building that 
are artificially or temporarily 
separated, for example by ropes or 
moveable partitions, can properly be 
regarded as different premises.” 

11.7 The general principles set out the 
type and number of high state gaming 
machines allowable in a premise are 
restricted according to the type of 
premises licence or permit granted.  
For example, a converted casino 
licence allows for 20 gaming 
machines in categories B, C or D.  
With exception of AGCs and FECs, 
premises are not permitted to be 
used exclusively for making available 
gaming machines, but rather to 
provide the gaming facilities 
corresponding to the premises 
licence type.  The Licence Conditions 
and Codes of Practice (LCCP), sets 
out in full the requirements on 
operators.   

11.8 With exception of bingo clubs, tracks 
on race-days, and licensed family 
entertainment centres, children will 
not be permitted to enter licensed 
gambling premises.  Therefore 
businesses will need to consider 
carefully how they wish to configure 
their buildings if they are seeking to 
develop multi-purpose sites.   

11.9 This Licensing Authority takes 
particular note of the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance to Licensing 
Authorities which states that: 
“licensing authorities should take 
particular care in considering 
applications for multiple licences for a 
building and those related to a 
discrete part of a building used for 
other (non-gambling) purposes.  In 
particular they should be aware of the 
following: 

• The third licensing objective 
seeks to protect children from 
being harmed by gambling.  In 
practice that means not only 
preventing them from taking part 
in gambling, but also preventing 
them from being in close 
proximity to gambling.  
Therefore premises should be 
configured so that children are 
not invited to participate in, have 
accidental access to or closely 
observe gaming where they are 
prohibited from participating. 

• Entrances to and exits from 
parts of a building covered by 
one or more premises licences 
should be separate and 
identifiable so the separation of 
different premises is not 
compromised and people do not 
‘drift’ into a gambling area.  In 
this context it should normally be 
possible to access the premises 
without going through another 
licensed premises or premises 
with a permit. 

• Customers should be able to 
participate in the activities 
named on the premises licence. 

The Guidance also gives a list of 
factors which the licensing authority 
should be aware of, which may 
include: 

Page 32

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
17 

• Do the premises have a separate 

registration for business rates 

• Is the premises’ neighbouring 

premises owned by the same 

person or someone else? 

• Can each of the premises be 

accessed from the street or a 

public passageway? 

• Can the premises only be 

accessed from other gambling 

premises? 

This authority will consider these and 
other relevant factors in making its 
decision, depending on all the 
circumstances of the case. 

11.10 The Gambling Commission’s 
relevant access provisions for 
each premises type are 
reproduced below: 
 
Casinos 

• The principal access entrance to 
the premises must be from a 
street (as defined at 7.26 of the 
Guidance). 

• No entrance to a casino must be 
from premises that are used 
wholly or mainly by children 
and/or young persons. 

• No customer must be able to 
enter a casino directly from any 
other premises which hold a 
gambling premises licence. 

Adult Gaming Centre 

• No customer must be able to 
access the premises directly from 
any other licensed gambling 
premises. 

Betting Shops 

• Access must be from a street (as 
per part 7 of the Guidance to 
Licensing Authorities) or from 
another premises with a betting 
premises licence.  

• No direct access from a betting 
shop to another premises used 
for the retail sale of merchandise 
or services.  In effect there 
cannot be an entrance to a 
betting shop from a shop of any 
kind and you could not have a 
betting shop at the back of a cafe 
– the whole area would have to 
be licensed.                                                                                                                                                

 

Tracks 

• No customer should be able to 
access the premises directly 
from: 
- a casino 
- an adult gaming centre 

Bingo Premises 

• No customer must be able to 
access the premise directly from: 
- a casino  
- an adult gaming centre 
- a betting premises, other than 

a track 

 Family Entertainment Centre 

• No customer must be able to 
access the premises directly 
from: 
- a casino 
- an adult gaming centre 
- a betting premises, other than 

a track 
 

Part 7 of the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance to Licensing Authorities 
contains further guidance on this 
issue, which this authority will also 
take into account in its decision-
making. 

11.11 In determining applications, the 
Licensing Authority has the duty to 
take into consideration all relevant 
matters and not to take into 
consideration any irrelevant matters, 
in effect those not related to gambling 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
18 

and licensing objectives.  One 
example of an irrelevant matter would 
be the likelihood of the applicant 
obtaining planning permission or 
building regulation approval for their 
proposal.  Bearing in mind that once 
a premises licence comes into effect 
it authorises the premises to be used 
for gambling, a licence can only be 
issued once the Licensing Authority is 
satisfied that the premises is ready to 
be used for gambling in the 
reasonably near future. If the 
construction of a premises is not yet 
complete, or if they need alteration, or 
if the applicant does not yet have a 
right to occupy them, then an 
application for a provisional statement 
should be made instead. See section 
19 of this policy for further guidance.   

11.12 In deciding whether a premises 
licence can be granted where there 
are outstanding construction or 
alteration works at a premises, this 
authority will determine applications 
on their merits, applying a two stage 
consideration process:- 

• First, whether the premises ought 
to be permitted to be used for 
gambling 

 
Second, whether appropriate 
conditions can be put in place to cater 
for the situation that the premises are 
not yet in the state in which they 
ought to be before gambling takes 
place. 
 

11.13 Applicants should note that this 
authority is entitled to decide that it is 
appropriate to grant a licence subject 
to conditions, but it is not obliged to 
grant such a licence. 

 
11.14 Location - This licensing authority is 

aware that demand issues cannot be 
considered with regard to the location 
of premises but that considerations in 
terms of the licensing objectives are 

relevant to its decision-making.  As 
per the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance to Licensing Authorities, 
this authority will pay particular 
attention to the protection of children 
and vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling, as 
well as issues of crime and disorder.  
Should any specific policy be decided 
upon as regards areas where 
gambling premises should not be 
located, this statement will be 
updated. It should be noted that any 
such policy does not preclude any 
application being made and each 
application will be decided on its 
merits. 

 
11.15 Duplication with other regulatory 

regimes - This licensing authority will 
seek to avoid any duplication with 
other statutory/regulatory systems 
where possible, including planning.  
This authority will not consider 
whether a licence application is likely 
to be awarded planning permission or 
building regulations approval, in its 
consideration of it.  It will though, 
listen to, and consider carefully, any 
concerns about conditions which are 
not able to be met by licensees due 
to planning restrictions, should such a 
situation arise. 

When dealing with a premises licence 
application for finished buildings, this 
authority will not take into account 
whether those buildings have to 
comply with the necessary planning 
or building consents.  Fire or health 
and safety risks will not be taken into 
account, as these matters are dealt 
with under relevant planning control, 
buildings and other regulations and 
must not form part of the 
consideration for the premises 
licence. 

11.16 Licensing Objectives 

Premises licences granted must be 
reasonably consistent with the 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
19 

licensing objectives.  With regard to 
these objectives, this licensing 
authority has considered the 
Gambling Commission’s Guidance to 
local authorities and some comments 
are made below. 

11.15 Preventing gambling from being a 
source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder 
or being used to support crime - 
This licensing authority is aware that 
the Gambling Commission will be 
taking a leading role in preventing 
gambling from being a source of 
crime.  The Gambling Commission's 
Guidance does however envisage 
that licensing authorities should pay 
attention to the proposed location of 
gambling premises in terms of this 
licensing objective.  Thus, if an area 
should have known high levels of 
organised crime this authority will 
consider carefully whether gambling 
premises are suitable to be located 
there and whether conditions may be 
suitable such as the provision of door 
supervisors.  This licensing authority 
is aware of the distinction between 
disorder and nuisance and will 
consider factors such as whether 
police assistance was required and 
how threatening the behaviour was to 
those who could see it, so as to make 
that distinction. 

11.16 Ensuring that gambling is 
conducted in a fair and open way - 
This licensing authority has noted that 
the Gambling Commission states that 
it generally does not expect licensing 
authorities to become concerned with 
ensuring that gambling is conducted 
in a fair and open way as this will be 
addressed via operating and personal 
licences issued by the Gambling 
Commission.  There is however, 
more of a role with regard to tracks 
which is explained in more detail in 
the 'tracks' section below at 
Paragraph 17. 

11.17 Protecting children and other 
vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling - 
With limited expectations, the 
intention of the Gambling Act is that 
children and young persons should 
not be permitted to gamble and 
should be prevented from entering 
those gambling premises which are 
adult-only environments.  The 
objective refers to protecting children 
from being ‘harmed or exploited by 
gambling’.  That means preventing 
them from taking part in gambling and 
for there to be restrictions on 
adverting so that gaming products are 
not aimed at children or adverting in 
such a way that makes them 
particularly attractive to children, 
excepting Category D gaming 
machines.  The licensing authority will 
therefore consider, whether specific 
measures are required at particular 
premises, with regard to this licensing 
objective.  Appropriate measures may 
include supervision of entrances/ 
machines, segregation of areas etc. 

This licensing authority is also aware 
of the Gambling Commission Codes 
of Practice as regards this licensing 
objective, in relation to specific 
premises. 

11.18 The Act does not seek to prohibit 
particular groups of adults from 
gambling in the same way that it 
prohibits children.  The Commission 
does not seek to define ‘vulnerable 
persons’, but it does for regulatory 
purposes assume that this group 
includes people who gamble more 
than they want to; people who 
gamble beyond their means; and 
people who may not be able to make 
informed or balanced decisions about 
gambling due to mental health needs, 
learning disability or substance 
misuse relating to alcohol or drugs.   
This licensing authority will consider, 
in relation to a particular premises, 
whether any special considerations 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
20 

apply in relation to the protection of 
vulnerable persons, on a case by 
case basis. 

11.19 Conditions 

 Any conditions attached to licences 
will be proportionate and will be: 

• relevant to the need to make the 
proposed building suitable as a 
gambling facility; 

• directly related to the premises 
and the type of licence applied 
for; 

• fairly and reasonably related to 
the scale and type of premises; 
and 

• Reasonable in all other respects. 
 
The mandatory and default 
conditions are usually sufficient to 
ensure operation that is reasonably 
consistent with the licensing 
objectives 

 
11.20 Decisions upon individual conditions 

will be made on a case by case 
basis, although there will be a 
number of measures this licensing 
authority will consider utilising should 
there be a perceived need, such as 
the use of door supervisors, 
appropriate signage for adult only 
areas etc.  There are specific 
comments made in this regard under 
some of the licence types below.  
This licensing authority will also 
expect the licence applicant to offer 
his/her own suggestions as to the 
way in which the licensing objectives 
can be met effectively.  

11.21 This licensing authority will also 
consider specific measures which 
may be required for buildings which 
are subject to multiple premises 
licences.  Such measures may 
include the supervision of entrances; 
segregation of gambling from non-
gambling areas frequented by 

children; and the supervision of 
gaming machines in non-adult 
gambling specific premises in order 
to pursue the licensing objectives.  
These matters are in accordance with 
the Gambling Commission's 
Guidance. 

11.22 This authority will also ensure that 
where category D (for information 
about the different categories of 
machine, please see appendix 3) or 
above machines are on offer in 
premises to which children are 
admitted: 

• all such machines are located in 
an area of the premises which is 
separated from the remainder of 
the premises by a physical barrier 
which is effective to prevent 
access other than through a 
designated entrance; 

• only adults are admitted to the 
area where these machines are 
located; 

• access to the area where the 
machines are located is 
supervised; 

• the area where these machines 
are located is arranged so that it 
can be observed by the staff or 
the licence holder; and 

• At the entrance to and inside any 
areas where there are Category 
A, B or C machines, in such 
areas there must be  prominently 
displayed notices indicating that 
access to the area is prohibited to 
persons under 18. 

These considerations will apply to 
premises including buildings where 
multiple premises licences are 
applicable 

11.23 This Licensing Authority is aware that 
tracks may be subject to one or more 
than one premises licence, provided 
each licence relates to a specified 
area of the track.  As per the 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
21 

Gambling Commission’s Guidance 
this licensing authority will consider 
the impact upon the objective to 
protect children and other vulnerable 
persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling and the need to 
ensure that entrances to each type of 
premises are distinct and that children 
are excluded from gambling areas 
where they are not permitted to enter. 

11.24 It is noted that there are conditions 
which the licensing authority cannot 
attach to premises licences which are: 

• any condition on the premises 
licence which makes it impossible 
to comply with an operating 
licence condition; 

• conditions relating to gaming 
machine categories, numbers, or 
method of operation; 

• conditions which provide that 
membership of a club or body be 
required (the Gambling Act 2005 
specifically removes the 
membership requirement for 
casino and bingo clubs and this 
provision prevents it being 
reinstated; and 

• Conditions in relation to stakes, 
fees, winning or prizes. 

11.25 Door Supervisors – The Gambling 
Commission advises in its Guidance 
to Licensing Authorities that if a 
licensing authority is concerned that a 
premises may attract disorder or be 
subject to attempts at unauthorised 
access (for example by children and 
young persons) then it may require 
that the entrances to the premises are 
controlled by a door supervisor, and is 
entitled to impose a premises licence 
condition to this effect. 

11.26 Section 178 of the Gambling Act 2005 
sets out a definition of ‘door 
supervisor’, and provides that where a 
person employed in such a role is 
required to hold a licence issued by 

the Security Industry Authority (SIA), 
that requirement will have force as 
though it were a condition on the 
premises licence.  

11.27 It should be noted that the above 
paragraphs relate to door supervisors 
only in relation to premises licences 
granted under the Gambling Act 
2005.  Where a premises licence has 
also been granted under the 
Licensing Act 2003 in relation to the 
same premises, there may also be 
conditions on that licence which relate 
to door supervisors.  The premises 
licence holder should ensure 
compliance with those conditions. 

11.28 The requirement for SIA licence door 
supervisors is relaxed when applied 
to door supervisors at casino or bingo 
premises.   Where ‘contract’ staff are 
employed as door supervisors at 
casino or bingo premises, such staff 
will need to be licensed by SIA.  
However ‘in- house’ employees 
working as door supervisors at casino 
and bingo premises are exempt from 
these requirements.   

12. Adult Gaming Centres 

12.1 Persons operating an Adult Gaming 
Centre (AGC) must hold a gaming 
machines general operating licence 
(Adult Gaming Centre) from the 
Commission and must seek a 
premises licence form the licensing 
authority.  They will be able to make 
category B, C and D gaming 
machines available to their 
customers.    

This licensing authority will 
specifically have regard to the need 
to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited 
by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that 
there will be sufficient measures to, 
for example, ensure that under 18 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
22 

year olds do not have access to the 
premises. 

12.2 This licensing authority will expect 
applicants to offer their own measures 
to meet the licensing objectives 
however appropriate 
measures/licence conditions may 
cover issues such as: 

• Proof of age schemes 

• CCTV – this should be of 
sufficient quality that it will be of 
use in evidence 

• Supervision of 
entrances/machine areas 

• Physical separation of areas 

• Location of entry 

• Notices/signage 

• Specific opening hours 

• Self-exclusion schemes – these 
are schemes whereby individuals 
who acknowledge they have a 
gambling problem ask to be 
barred from certain premises. 

• Provision of information 
leaflets/helpline numbers for 
organisations such as GamCare. 

12.3 This list is not mandatory, nor 
exhaustive, and is merely indicative of 
example measures which applicants 
can consider implementing. 

12.4 The following mandatory conditions 
will be attached to adult gaming 
centre premises licences:  
 

• A notice must be displayed at 
all entrances to AGCs stating 
that no person under the age 
of 18 years will be admitted to 
the premises.  

• There can be no direct access 
between an AGC and any other 
premises licensed under the Act 
or premises with a Family 
Entertainment Centre, club 
gaming, club machine or licensed 
premises gaming machine permit. 

There is no definition of ‘direct 
Access’ in the Act or regulations.  
However, it could be said that 
there should be an area 
separating the premises 
concerned (for example, a street 
or café), which the public go to for 
purposes other than gambling, for 
there to be shown to be no direct 
access.  

• Any ATM made available for use 
on the premise shall be located in 
place that requires any customer 
who wishes to use it to cease 
gambling at any gaming machine 
in order to do so.  

• The consumption of alcohol in 
AGCs is prohibited at any time 
during which facilities for 
gambling are being provided on 
the premises.  A notice stating 
this should be displayed in a 
prominent place at every 
entrance to the premises.  
 
 

13. (Licensed) Family Entertainment 
Centres (FEC)  

13.1 The Act creates two classes of 
Family Entertainment Centres (FEC).  
This section of the policy concerns 
licenced FECs.  Persons operating a 
licensed FEX must hold a gaming 
machine general operating licence 
(Family Entertainment Centre) from 
the Commission and must seek a 
premises licence from the Licensing 
Authority.  They will be able to make 
category C and D gaming machines 
available to their customers.  
Unlicensed FECs provide category D 
machines only and are regulated 
through FEC gaming machine 
permits (see Section B of this policy).  

13.2 This Licensing Authority will 
specifically have regard to the need 
to protect children and young 
persons.  Children and young 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
23 

persons will be permitted to enter an 
FEX and may play on the category D 
machines.  They are not permitted to 
play on a category C machines, and it 
is a requirement that there must be 
clear segregation between the two 
types of machines, so that children 
do not have access to category C 
machines. 

13.3 This licensing authority will refer to 
the Gambling Commission’s website 
to see any conditions that apply to 
operating licences covering the way in 
which the area containing the 
category C machines should be 
delineated.  It will normally impose 
conditions on granting licences which 
accord with the above.  This licensing 
authority will also make itself aware of 
and impose any mandatory or default 
conditions on these premises 
licences. 

13.4 This Licensing Authority will expect 
applicants to offer their own measures 
to meet the licensing objectives 
however appropriate 
measures/licence conditions may 
cover issues such as: 

• Proof of age schemes 

• CCTV – this should be of 
sufficient quality that it will be of 
use in evidence 

• Supervision of 
entrances/machine areas 

• Physical separation of areas 

• Location of entry 

• Notices/signage 

• Specific opening hours 

• Self-exclusion schemes– these 
are schemes whereby individuals 
who acknowledge they have a 
gambling problem ask to be 
barred from certain premises 

• Provision of information 
leaflets/helpline numbers for 
organisations such as GamCare. 

• Measures/training for staff on 
how to deal with suspected 
truant school children on the 
premises 

13.5 This list is not mandatory, nor 
exhaustive, and is merely indicative of 
example measures which applicants 
can consider implementing. 

13.6 Mandatory conditions attached to 
FEC premises licences:  

• The summary of the terms and 
conditions of the premises licence 
issued by the Licensing Authority 
under section 164(1) (c) of the Act 
must be displayed in a prominent 
place within the premises.  

• The layout of the premises must be 
maintained in accordance with the 
plan.  

• The premises must not be used for 
sale of tickets in a private lottery or 
customer lottery, or the National 
Lottery.  

• No customer shall enter the premises 
directly from a casino, an adult 
gaming centre or betting premises 
(other than a track).  There is no 
definition of ‘direct Access’ in the Act 
or regulations.  However, it could be 
said that there should be an area 
separating the premises concerned 
(for example, a street or café), which 
the public got for purposes other than 
gambling, for there to be no direct 
access.  

• Any ATM made available for use on 
the premises must be located in a 
place that requires any customer who 
wishes to use it to cease gambling at 
any gaming machine in order to do 
so.  

• Over-18 areas within FECs that admit 
under-18s must be separated by a 
barrier with prominently displayed 
notices at the entrance stating that 
under -18s are not allowed in that 
area and with adequate supervision 
in place to ensure that children and 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
24 

young persons are not able to access 
these areas or the category C 
machines.  Supervision may be done 
either by placing the terminals within 
the line of sight of an official of the 
operator or via monitored CCTV.  

• The consumption of alcohol in 
licensed FECs is prohibited at any 
time during which facilities for 
gambling are being provided.  A 
notice stating this should be 
displayed in a prominent position on 
the premises.   
   

14. Casinos 

14.1 Section 7(1) of the Act states that ‘a 
casino is an arrangement whereby 
people are given an opportunity to 
participate in one or more casino 
games’.  Casinos games are defined 
by the Act to mean a game of chance 
which is not equal chance gaming.  
Equal chance gaming is gaming 
which does not involve playing or 
staking against a bank, and where 
the chances are equally favourable t 
all participants.  

14.2 Protection of children and young 
persons – No-one under the age of 
18 is permitted to enter a casino and 
operators are required to display 
notices to this effect at all entrances 
to a casino.  Children and young 
persons are not allowed to be 
employed at premises with a casino 
premises licence.    

14.3 No Casinos resolution - This 
licensing authority has not passed a 
‘no casino’ resolution under Section 
166 of the Gambling Act 2005, but is 
aware that it has the power to do so.  
Should this licensing authority decide 
in the future to pass such a 
resolution, it will update this policy 
statement with details of that 
resolution.  Any such decision will be 
made by the Full Council. 

14.4 Casinos and competitive bidding - 
This licensing authority is aware that 
where a licensing authority area is 
enabled to grant a premises licence 
for a new style casino (i.e. the 
Secretary of State has made such 
regulations under Section 175 of the 
Gambling Act 2005) there are likely to 
be a number of operators who will 
want to run the casino.  In such 
situations the local authority will run a 
‘competition’ under Schedule 9 of the 
Gambling Act 2005.  This licensing 
authority will run such a competition 
in line with the Gambling (Inviting 
Competing Applications for Large and 
Small Casino Premises Licences) 
Regulations 2008, as well as 
following the procedure set out in 
Part 17 of the Guidance. 

14.5 Licence considerations / 
conditions – This licensing authority 
will attach conditions to casino 
premises licences according to the 
principles set out in the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance at paragraph 
9, bearing in mind the mandatory 
conditions listed in paragraph 17 of 
the Guidance, and the Licence 
Conditions and Codes of Practice 
published by the Gambling 
Commission. The mandatory 
conditions attached to all casino 
premises are as follows:  

• Access to the premises is 
regulated to add additional 
safeguards for both the public and 
industry.  Mandatory conditions 
that must be attached to all casino 
premises licences require that the 
principal entrance to the casino 
should be from a street.  A street 
is defined as including any bridge, 
road, lane, footway, subway, 
square, court, alley or passage 
(including passages through 
enclosed premises such as 
shopping centres), whether it is a 
thoroughfare or not.  

Page 40

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
25 

• A mandatory condition requires 
that no customer must be able to 
enter the casino from any other 
premise holding a casino, bingo, 
AGC, FEC or betting premises 
licence, or from premise where a 
FEC, club gaming and club 
machine, or licensed premises 
gaming machine permit, has 
effect.  

• There should be no access to a 
casino from premises wholly or 
mainly used by children and 
young persons.  

• No other gambling equipment 
may be situated within two meters 
of any ordinary gaming table.  For 
the purpose of these conditions 
an ordinary gaming table means 
one which is not wholly or partially 
automated.  

• A maximum of 40 separate player 
positions may be made available 
for use in relation to wholly 
automated gaming tables at any 
time.  

• All casinos must display the rules 
of each type of casino game that 
can be played on the premises in 
a prominent place within both the 
table gaming area and other 
gambling areas to which 
customers have unrestricted 
access.  Licensees may do this 
either by displaying clear and 
legible signs or by making 
available to customers leaflets or 
other written material setting out 
the rules.  

• ATMs must be positioned so that 
customers must cease to gamble 
at tables or gaming machines in 
order to use them.  

• The default opening hours of all 
casinos are noon to 6am.  

There are mandatory conditions 
relating to small casinos, large 
casinos, and converted casinos 
premises licence which are detailed 
in section 17 of the guidance.  

14.6 Betting machines - This licensing 
authority will, as per the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance, take into 
account the size of the premises, the 
number of counter positions available 
for person-to-person transactions, 
and the ability of staff to monitor the 
use of the machines by children and 
young persons (it is an offence for 
those under 18 to bet) or by 
vulnerable people, when considering 
the number/nature/circumstances of 
betting machines an operator wants 
to offer. 

15. Bingo Premises 

15.1 This licensing authority notes that the 
Gambling Commission’s Guidance 
states: 15.1 Licensing Authorities will 
need to satisfy themselves that bingo 
can be played in any bingo premises 
for which they issue a premises 
licence.  This will be a relevant 
consideration where the operator of 
an existing bingo premises applies to 
vary their licence to exclude an area 
of the existing premises from its 
ambit and then applies for a new 
premises licence, or multiple 
licences, for that or those excluded 
premises 

15.2  Under the Act, children and young 
persons (anyone under the age of 18) 
cannot be employed in providing nay 
facilities for gambling or bingo 
premises, and children (under 16) 
cannot be employed, in any capacity 
at a time when facilities for playing 
bingo are being offered.  However, 
young persons, aged 16 and 17, may 
be employed in bingo premises (while 
bingo is being played), providing the 
activities on which they are employed 
is not connected with the gaming or 
gaming machines.  

15.3  Children and young people are 
allowed into bingo premises; however 
they are not permitted to participate 
in bingo and if category B or C 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
26 

machines are made available for use 
these must be separated from areas 
where children and young people are 
allowed.15.4 Section 172(7) provides 
that the holder of a bingo premises 
licence may make available for use a 
number of category B machines not 
exceeding 20% of the total number of 
gaming machines which are available 
for use on the premises.  Premises in 
existence before 13th July 2011 are 
entitled to make available eight 
category B gaming machines, 20% of 
the total number of gaming machines, 
whichever is the greater.  The holder 
of bingo premises licence granted on 
or after 13th July 2011 but before 1st 
April 2014 is entitled to make 
available a maximum of eight 
category B gaming machines or 20% 
of the total number of gaming 
machines, whichever is the greater; 
from 1st April 2014 these premises 
will be entitled to 20% of the total 
number of gaming machines only.  
Regulations state that category B 
machines at bingo premises should 
be restricted to sub-category B3 and 
B4 machines, but not B3A lottery 
machines.  

15.4 The gaming machines must remain 
within the licensed area covered by 
the premises licence.  In the unusual 
circumstances that an existing bingo 
premises covered by one premises 
licence applies to vary the licence 
and acquire additional bingo 
premises licences (so that the area 
that was the subject of a single 
licence will become divided between 
a number of separate licenced 
premises) is not permissible for all 
the gaming machines to which each 
of the licence brings an entitlement to 
be grouped together within one of the 
licensed premises.  

Bingo in clubs and alcohol-
licensed premises 

15.5 Bingo is a class of equal chance 
gaming permitted on alcohol-licensed 
premises, and in clubs and miners’ 
welfare institutes, under the 
allowances for exempt gaming in Part 
12 of the Act.  There are regulations 
setting controls on this form of 
gaming, to ensure that it remains low 
stakes and prize activity.  

15.6 Where the level of bingo played in 
these premises reaches a certain 
threshold (i.e. bingo played during 
any seven day period exceeds 
£2,000 either in money in taken or 
prizes awarded once in a year), there 
is a legal duty on the Licensee or club 
to inform the Commission as soon as 
is reasonably practicable.  Stakes or 
prizes above that limit will require 
bingo operators’ licence and 
corresponding personal and premises 
licence.   

15.7 The following mandatory conditions 
must be attached to a bingo premises 
licence:  

• A notice stating that no person under 
the age of 18 years is permitted to 
play bingo on the premises shall be 
displayed in a prominent place at 
every entrance to the premises.  

• No customer shall be able to enter 
bingo premises directly from casino, 
an adult gaming centre or betting 
premises (other than a track).  

• Over 18 areas within bingo halls that 
admit under-18s must be separated 
by a barrier with prominently 
displayed notices stating that under-
18s are not allowed in that area and 
with adequate supervision in place to 
ensure that children and young 
people are not able to access these 
areas or the category B or C 
machines.  Supervision may be done 
either by placing the terminals within 
the line of sight of an official of the 
operator or via monitored CCTV.  

Page 42

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
27 

• Any admission charges, the charges 
for playing bingo games and the rules 
of bingo must be displayed in a 
prominent position on the premises.  
Rules can be displayed on a sign, by 
making available leaflets or other 
written material containing the rules, 
or running an audio-visual guide to 
the rules prior to any bingo game 
being commenced.  

• Any ATM made available for use on 
the premises shall be located in a 
place that requires any customer who 
wishes to use it to cease gambling in 
order to do so.  

Default conditions to attach to bingo 
premises licence:  

• Bingo facilities in bingo premises 
may not be offered between the 
hours of midnight and 
09:00hours.  However, there are 
no restrictions on access to 
gaming machines in bingo 
premises.  

 
Operators may make applications to 
amend the default conditions relating to 
hours.  

 

16. Betting Premises 

16.1 Anyone wishing to operate a betting 
office will require a betting premises 
licence from the Council.  Children 
and young persons will not be able to 
enter premises with a betting 
premises licence, although 
exemptions apply to tracks.  Children 
and young persons are not allowed to 
be employed at premises with a 
betting premises licence. 

16.2 Betting premises will be able to 
provide up to four gaming machines 
of category B, C or D.  Regulations 
state that category B machines at 
betting premises are restricted to 
sub-category B2, B3 and B4 
machines. 

16.3 Betting machines - This licensing 
authority will, as per the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance, take into 
account the size of the premises, the 
number of counter positions available 
for person-to-person transactions, 
and the ability of staff to monitor the 
use of the machines by children and 
young persons (it is an offence for 
those under 18 to bet) or by 
vulnerable people, when considering 
the number/nature/circumstances of 
betting machines an operator wants 
to offer. 

16.4 The following mandatory conditions 
will be attached to a betting premises 
licence (other than track premises 
licences) as stated within parts 1 and 
2 to Schedule 5 of the Gambling Act 
2005: 

 
PART 1 
 
1. A notice stating that no person 
under the age of 18 years is 
permitted to enter the premises shall 
be displayed in a prominent place at 
every entrance to the premises. 
 
2. (1) Access to the premises 

shall be from a street or from 
other premises with a betting 
premises licence. 
(2) Without prejudice to sub-
paragraph (1), there shall be 
no means of direct access 
between the premises and 
other premises used for the 
retail sale of merchandise or 
services. 
 

3. Subject to anything permitted by 
virtue of the 2005 Act, or done in 
accordance with paragraphs 4, 5, 6 
and 7 below, the premises shall not 
be used for any purpose other than 
for providing facilities for betting. 
 
4. Any ATM made available for use 
on the premises shall be located in a 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
28 

place that requires any customer who 
wishes to use it to leave any gaming 
machine or betting machine in order 
to do so. 
 
5. No apparatus for making 
information or other material available 
in the form of sounds or visual 
images may be used on the 
premises, except for apparatus used 
for the following 
purposes 

(a) communicating information 
about, or coverage of, sporting 
events, including 

(i) information relating to 
betting on such an event; 
and 
(ii) any other matter or 
information, including an 
advertisement, which is 
incidental to such an event; 

 
(b) communicating information 
relating to betting on any event 
(including the result of the event) 
in connection with which betting 
transactions may be or have 
been effected on the premises. 

 
6. No publications, other than racing 
periodicals or specialist betting 
publications, may be sold or offered 
for sale on the premises. 
 
7. No music, dancing or other 
entertainment shall be provided or 
permitted on the premises, save for 
entertainment provided in accordance 
with paragraph 5. 
 
8.— (1) No alcohol shall be 
permitted to be consumed on the 
premises at any time during which 
facilities for gambling are being 
provided on the premises. 
(2) A notice stating the condition in 
sub-paragraph (1) shall be displayed 
in a prominent place at every 
entrance to the premises. 

 

9. A notice setting out the terms on 
which customers are invited to bet on 
the premises shall be displayed in a 
prominent place on the premises to 
which customers have unrestricted 
access. 
 
PART 2 
 
Default conditions attaching to betting 
premise licences (other than in 
respect of tracks) 
 
No facilities for gambling shall be 
provided 

17. Tracks 

17.1 Only one premises licence can be 
issued for any particular premises at 
any time unless the premises are a 
‘track’.  A track is a site or venues 
where sporting events do or could 
take place, and accordingly could 
accommodate the provision of betting 
facilities.  Examples of track include:  

• A horse racecourse 
(racecourses)  

• A greyhound track  

• A point-to-point horserace 
meeting  

• Football, cricket and rugby 
grounds  

• An athletics stadium  

• A golf course  

• Venues hosting darts, bowls, or 
snooker tournaments  

• A premises staging boxing 
matches  

• A section of river hosting a fishing 
competition  

• A motor racing event  

17.2 Track operators are not required to 
hold an ‘operator’s licence’ granted 
by the Gambling Commission.  
Therefore, premises licences for 
tracks, issued by the Council are 
likely to contain requirements for 
premises licence holders about their 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
29 

responsibilities in relation to the 
proper conduct of betting.  Indeed, 
track operators will have an important 
role to play, for example in ensuring 
that betting areas are properly 
administered and supervised. 

17.3 Although there will, primarily be a 
betting premises licence for the track 
there may be a number of subsidiary 
licences authorising other gambling 
activities to take place.  Unlike betting 
offices, a betting premises licence in 
respect of a track does not give an 
automatic entitlement to use gaming 
machines. 

17.4 This licensing authority is aware that 
tracks may be subject to one or more 
than one premises licence, provided 
each licence relates to a specified 
area of the track.  As per the 
Gambling Commission’s Guidance, 
this licensing authority will especially 
consider the impact upon the third 
licensing objective (i.e. the protection 
of children and vulnerable persons 
from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling) and the need to ensure 
that entrances to each type of 
premises are distinct and that 
children are excluded from gambling 
areas where they are not permitted to 
enter.  

17.5 This authority will therefore expect 
the premises licence applicant to 
demonstrate suitable measures to 
ensure that children do not have 
access to adult only gaming facilities.  
It is noted that children and young 
persons will be permitted to enter 
track areas where facilities for betting 
are provided on days when dog-
racing and/or horse racing takes 
place, but that they are still prevented 
from entering areas where gaming 
machines (other than category D 
machines) are provided. 

17.6 This licensing authority will expect 
applicants to offer their own measures 
to meet the licensing objectives; 
however appropriate 
measures/licence conditions may 
cover issues such as: 

• Proof of age schemes 

• CCTV– this should be of 
sufficient quality that it will be of 
use in evidence 

• Supervision of 
entrances/machine areas 

• Physical separation of areas 

• Location of entry 

• Notices/signage 

• Specific opening hours 

• Self-exclusion schemes– these 
are schemes whereby individuals 
who acknowledge they have a 
gambling problem ask to be 
barred from certain premises. 

• Provision of information 
leaflets/helpline numbers for 
organisations such as GamCare. 
 

17.7 This list is not mandatory, nor 
exhaustive, and is merely indicative of 
example measures which applicants 
can consider implementing. 

 
17.8 Gaming machines - Where the 

applicant holds a pool betting 
operating licence and is going to use 
the entitlement to four gaming 
machines, machines (other than 
category D machines) should be 
located in areas from which children 
are excluded. 

 
17.9 Betting machines - Licensing 

authorities have a power under the 
Gambling Act 2005 to restrict the 
number of betting machines, their 
nature and the circumstances in 
which they are made available, by 
attaching a licence condition to a 
betting premises licence. 
 
Similar considerations apply in 
relation to tracks, where the potential 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
30 

space for such machines may be 
considerable, bringing with it 
significant problems in relation to the 
proliferation of such machines, the 
ability of track staff to supervise them 
if they are scattered around the track 
and the ability of the track operator to 
comply with the law and prevent 
children betting on the machines. 

 
This licensing authority will, as per 
Part 6 of the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance, take into account the size 
of the premises and the ability of staff 
to monitor the use of the machines by 
children and young persons (it is an 
offence for those under 18 to bet) or 
by vulnerable people, when 
considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of 
betting machines an operator 
proposes to offer.   

17.10 Condition on rules being displayed 
- A condition will normally be attached 
to track premises licences requiring 
the track operator to ensure that the 
rules relating to tracks which are 
contained in the Act are prominently 
displayed in or near the betting areas, 
or that other measures are taken to 
ensure that they are made available 
to the public.  For example, the rules 
could be printed in the race-card or 
made available in leaflet form from 
the track office. 

17.11 Applications and plans – The Act 
(s51) requires applicants to submit 
plans of the premises with their 
application, in order to ensure that the 
licensing authority has the necessary 
information to make an informed 
judgement about whether the 
premises are fit for gambling.  The 
plan will also be used for the licensing 
authority to plan future premises 
inspection activity (See Guidance, 
para 20.2843). 

17.12 Plans for tracks do not need to be in a 
particular scale, but should be drawn 

to scale and should be sufficiently 
detailed to include the information 
required by regulations (see 
Guidance, para 20.4429). 

17.13 Some tracks may be situated on 
agricultural land where the perimeter 
is not defined by virtue of an outer 
wall or fence, such as point-to-point 
racetracks.  In such circumstances, 
where an entry fee is levied, track 
premises licence holders may erect 
temporary structures to restrict 
access to premises (See Guidance, 
para 20.4631) 

17.14 In the rare cases where the outer 
perimeter cannot be defined, it is 
likely that the track in question will not 
be specifically designed for the 
frequent holding of sporting events or 
races.  In such cases betting facilities 
may be better provided through 
occasional use notices where the 
boundary premises do not need to be 
defined (See Guidance, para 
20.4732). 

17.15 This authority appreciates it is 
sometimes difficult to define the 
precise location of betting areas on 
tracks.  The precise location of where 
betting facilities are provided is not 
required to be shown on the track 
plans, both by virtue of the fact that 
betting is permitted anywhere on the 
premises and because of the 
difficulties associated with pinpointing 
exact locations for some types of 
track.  Applicants should provide 
sufficient information that this 
authority can satisfy itself that the 
[plan indicates the main areas where 
betting might take place.  For 
racecourses in particular, any betting 
areas subject to the “five times rule” 
(commonly known as betting rings) 
must be indicated on the plan (See 
Guidance, para 20.4733). 

Page 46

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
31 

18. Travelling Fairs 

18.1 This licensing authority is responsible 
for deciding whether, where category 
D machines and/or equal chance 
prize gaming without a permit is to be 
made available for use at travelling 
fairs, the statutory requirement that 
the facilities for gambling amount to 
no more than an ancillary amusement 
at the fair is met. 

18.2 The licensing authority will also 
consider whether the applicant falls 
within the statutory definition of a 
travelling fair: 

For the purposes of this Act – 
(a) “fair” means a fair consisting 

wholly or principally of the 
provision of amusements, and 

(b) a fair held on a day in a calendar 
year is a “travelling fair” if 
provided- 
(i) wholly or principally by 

persons who travel from 
place to place for the 
purpose of providing fairs, 
and 

(ii) At a place no part of which 
has been used for the 
provision of a fair on more 
than 27 days in that 
calendar year. 

18.3 It is noted that the 27-day statutory 
maximum for the land being used as 
a fair, applies on a calendar year 
basis, and that it applies to the piece 
of land on which the fairs are held, 
regardless of whether it is the same 
or different travelling fairs occupying 
the land.  This licensing authority will 
work with its neighbouring authorities 
to ensure that land which crosses our 
boundaries is monitored so that the 
statutory limits are not exceeded. 

19. Provisional Statements 

19.1 Developers may wish to apply to this 
authority for provisional statement 

before entering into a contract to buy 
or lease property or land to judge 
whether a development is worth 
taking forward in light of the need to 
obtain a premises licence.  There is 
no need for the applicant to hold an 
operating licence in order to apply for 
a provisional statement. 

19.2 S204 of the Act provides for a person 
to make application to the licensing 
authority for a provisional statement 
in respect of premises that he or she: 

• Expects to be constructed; 

• Expects to be altered; or 

• Expects to acquire a right to 
occupy. 

19.3 The process for considering an 
application for a provisional 
statement is the same as that for a 
premises licence application.  The 
applicant is obliged to give notice of 
the application in the same way as 
applying for a premises licence.  
Responsible authorities and 
interested parties may make 
representations and there are rights 
of appeal. 

19.4 In contrast to the premises licence 
application, the applicant does not 
have to hold or have applied for an 
operating licence from the Gambling 
Commission (except in the case of a 
track) and they do not have to have a 
right to occupy the premises in 
respect of which their provisional 
application is made. 

19.5 The holder of a provisional statement 
may then apply for a premises 
licence once the premises are 
constructed, altered or acquired.  The 
licensing authority will be constrained 
in the matters it can consider when 
determining the premises licence 
application, and in terms of 
representations about premises 
licence applications that follow the 
grant of a provisional statement, no 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
32 

further representations from  
responsible authorities or interested 
parties can be taken into account 
unless they: 

• concern matters which could not 
have been raised by objectors at 
the provisional licence stage; or 

• Reflect a change in the operator’s 
circumstances. 

19.6 In addition the licensing authority may 
refuse the premises licence (or grant 
it on terms different to those attached 
to the provisional statement) only by 
reference to matters: 

• Which could not have been 
raised by objectors at the 
provisional statement stage; 

• Which in the authority’s opinion 
reflect a change in the operator’s 
circumstances; or 

• Where the premise has not been 
constructed in accordance with 
the plan submitted with the 
application.  This must be a 
substantial change to the plan 
and this licensing authority notes 
that it can discuss any concerns it 
has with the applicant before 
making a decision. 

20. Reviews 

20.1 Requests for a review of a premises 
licence can be made by interested 
parties or responsible authorities; 
however, it is for the Licensing 
Authority to decide whether the 
review is to be carried-out.  This will 
be on the basis of whether the 
request for the review is relevant to 
the matters listed below: 

• in accordance with any relevant 
code of practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission; 

• in accordance with any relevant 
guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission; 

• reasonably consistent with the 
licensing objectives; and 

• In accordance with this authority’s 
statement of licensing policy. 

20.2 The request for a review will also be 
subject to the consideration by the 
licensing authority as to whether the 
request is frivolous, vexatious, or 
whether it will certainly not cause this 
authority to wish to 
alter/revoke/suspend the licence, or 
whether it is substantially the same as 
previous representations or requests 
for review. 

The licensing authority can also 
initiate a review of a particular 
premises licence, or a particular class 
of premises licence on the basis of 
any reason which it thinks is 
appropriate. 

20.3 Once a valid application for a review 
has been received by the licensing 
authority, representations can be 
made by responsible authorities and 
interested parties during a 28 day 
period.  This period begins 7 days 
after the application was received by 
the licensing authority, who will 
publish notice of the application within 
7 days of receipt. 

20.4 The licensing authority must carry out 
the review as soon as possible after 
the 28 day period for making 
representations has passed. 

20.5 The purpose of the review will be to 
determine whether the licensing 
authority should take any action in 
relation to the licence.  If action is 
justified, the options open to the 
licensing authority are: 

• Add, remove or amend a licence 
condition imposed by the 
licensing authority; 

• Exclude a default condition 
imposed by the Secretary of 
State (e.g. opening hours) or 

Page 48

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
33 

remove or amend such an 
exclusion; 

• Suspend the premises licence for 
a period not exceeding three 
months; and 

• Revoke the premises licence. 

20.6 In determining what action, if any, 
should be taken following a review, 
the licensing authority must have 
regard to the principles set out in 
s153 of the Act, as well as any 
relevant representations. 

20.7 In particular, the licensing authority 
may also initiate a review of the 
premises licence on the grounds that 
a premises licence holder has not 
provided facilities for gambling at the 
premises.  This is to prevent people 
from applying for licences in a 
speculative manner without intending 
to use them. 

20.8 Once the review has been 
completed, the licensing authority 
must, as soon as possible, notify its 
decision to: 

• The licence holder; 

• The applicant for review (if any); 

• The Gambling Commission; 

• Any person who made 
representations; 

• The Chief Officer of Police or 
Chief Constable; 

• Her Majesty’s Commissioners for 
Revenues and Customs. 

21 Rights of appeal and judicial 
review – Premises Licences  

21.1 This section deals only with appeals 
relating to premises licensing and 
other decisions by the Licensing 
Authority.   The avenues of appeal 
against decisions the Licensing 
Authority are set out in sections 206 
and 209 of the Act.  

21.2 If an application under Part 8 of the 
Act is rejected, only the applicant 
may appeal.  If an application under 
Part 8 of the Act is granted, the 
applicant and a person who made 
representations may appeal.  It does 
not automatically follow that the 
person who made the 
representations will be appellant.  It 
could be the licensee who is 
appealing, because he or she 
considers conditions attached to the 
licence too onerous.  Similar 
arrangements will apply in appeals 
against a decision not to take action 
following a review, and in relation to 
the grant of temporary use notices.  
The Licensing Authority will choose 
who it has as its witness.  

21.3 If the Licensing Authority takes action 
or determines to take no action 
(which may include revocation or 
suspension of the licence, or the 
removal or addition of licence 
conditions) after the review of a 
licence, any of the following may 
appeal:  

• The licence holder  

• A person who made 
representations in relation to the 
review  

• Where relevant, the person who 
applied for the review  

• The Commission.  

21.4 Where the Licensing Authority makes 
a decision in relation to the transfer of 
a premises licence, which may 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
34 

involve amending licence conditions, 
the licence holder and the applicant 
for transfer have a right of appeal.  

21.5 Notice of an appeal must be given 
within 21 days of notice of the 
decision being received by the 
appellant.  During that period, and 
until any appeal that has been 
brought has been finally determined, 
a determination or the other action by 
the Licensing Authority under Part 8 
of the Action will not have effect 
unless the authority so directs (see 
section 208 of the Act).  

21.6 In many cases, it is a requirement of 
the Act that Licensing Authority gives 
clear and comprehensive reasons for 
rejection of an application.  To clear 
and transparent the Licensing 
Authority will give reasons for all its 
decisions (see section 165 of the act, 
which is also applied in relation to 
other applications under Part 8 of the 
Act).  A failure to give reasons may 
compel a person to appeal, and may 
suggest that the Licensing Authority 
did not make its decision with regard 
to all the information that it should 
have regard to, and in line with its 
obligation under section 153 
(regardless of the decision that was 
reached).  

21.7 Any appeal against the Licensing 
Authority is made to the Magistrates 
court.  The Magistrates court is 
located at:  

 
South Cumbria Magistrates’ Court,  
Abbey Road,  
Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria 
LA14 5QX  
01229 820161  

 
 
21.8 An appeal has to be commenced by 

giving of a notice of appeal by the 
appellant to the local magistrate’s 

court within a period of 21 days, 
beginning with the day on which the 
appellant was notified by the 
Licensing Authority of the decision 
being appealed.  

 
21.9 It should be noted that unless he is 

the appellant, the licence holder or a 
person who has made application for:  

• A licence  

• The transfer or reinstatement of a 
licence 

• A provisional statement  
Is a respondent in any appeal, in 
addition to the Licensing Authority. 
 

21.10 On determining an appeal, the court 
may:  

• Dismiss the appeal  

• Substitute the decision appealed 
against with any other decision 
that could have been made by 
the Licensing Authority  

• Remit the case to the Licensing 
Authority to dispose of het appeal 
in accordance with the direction 
of the court.  

 
Provisional statements  
 
21.11 A provisional statement can be 

refused on exactly the same grounds 
as a premises licence.  The applicant 
may appeal against the rejection of 
an application of a provisional 
statement under section 206(1); and 
a person who made representations 
or the applicant may appeal against 
the grant of an application.  

 
Permits  
 
21.12 The process of appeals in respect of 

permits is different to that for 
premises licences and is set out in 
the following Schedules of the Act:  

• Schedule 10 – Family 
entertainment centre gaming 
machine permits (further 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
35 

explained in paragraphs 12.2116 
– 12.2317 of the guidance). 

• Schedule 11 (Parts 4 and 5) – 
Small society lotteries (further 
explained in paragraphs 12.1824 
– 12.2519 of the guidance).  

• Schedule 12 – Club gaming 
permits and club machine permits 
(further explained in paragraphs 
12.206 – 12.2631 of the 
guidance). 

• Schedule 13 – Licensed premises 
gaming machine permits (further 
explained in paragraphs 12.2732 
– 12.2834 of the guidance).  

• Schedule 14 – Prize gaming 
permits (further explained in 
paragraphs 12.2935 – 12.3037 of 
the guidance).  

 
Temporary use notices  
 
21.13 Appeals in relation to temporary use 

notices are detailed with in section 
226 of the Act.  This section grants 
the right to appeal to the magistrates’ 
court to both the applicant and any 
person entitled to receive a copy of 
the notice (that is the Commission, 
local chief of police and HM Revenue 
and Customs).  Appeals must be 
made within 21 days of receiving the 
notice of the Licensing Authority’s 
decision.  If the appeal is against the 
decision of the authority not to issue 
a counter-notice, then the person 
giving notice must be joined with the 
Licensing Authority as a respondent 
in the case.  

  
21.14 The magistrates’ court may take the 

following action: dismiss the appeal, 
direct the authority to take specified 
action, remit it back to the authority to 
decide in accordance with a decision 
of the court, and make an order for 
costs.  It should be noted that if the 
decision is remitted to the authority, 
the same rights of appeal will apply 
as for the original decision.  

  

21.15 There is no stay of proceedings in 
relation to temporary use notices (as 
there are in relation to applications 
under Part 8 of the Act).  However, 
the time limits are such that the 
Commission would expect 
proceedings on appeal to be heard 
before the temporary use notice 
would otherwise take effect.  

 
Judicial review  
 
21.16 Any party to a decision may apply for 

judicial review if they believe that the 
decision taken by the Licensing 
Authority is:  

• Illegal – that is beyond the 
powers available to the Licensing 
Authority  

• Subject to procedural impropriety 
or unfairness – which is failure in 
the process of reaching the 
decision, such as not observing 
the ‘rules of natural justice’  

• Irrational – where a decision is 
so unreasonable that no 
sensible person could have 
reached it (in effect ‘perverse’ 
or ‘Wednesbury’ 
unreasonable).  

 
21.17 For an application to succeed, the 

application must show that:  

• The applicant has sufficient 
standing to make that claim  

• The actions of the reviewed 
Licensing Authority give grounds 
for review 

 
But the remedy is a discretionary one 
and the Court may decline judicial 
review if, for example, it considers 
that the applicant has an alternative 
remedy which is more appropriate to 
pursue, such as right of appeal, or 
has a private law claim against the 
defendant.  

 
21.18 The applicant can ask the Court to 

grant a number of orders.  A 
mandatory order compels the 

Page 51

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
36 

reviewed body to do something; a 
prohibitory order compels it to refrain 
from doing something; a ‘declaration’ 
sets out the court’s view on the 
legality of particular course of action, 
the applicant can seek an injunction 

which is, in practice, similar to a 
mandatory or prohibitory order.    

 

 

Page 52

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
37 

Part C - Permits / Temporary & Occasional Use 
Notice 

 

21. Unlicensed Family 
Entertainment Centre Gaming 
Machine Permits (Statement of 
Principles on Permits - 
Schedule 10 paragraph 7) 

21.1 Family Entertainment Centres (FECs) 

are commonly located at seaside resorts, 
in airports and motorway service 
stations, and cater for families, including 
unaccompanied children and young 
persons. Unlicensed FECs are able to 
offer only category D machines in 
reliance on gaming machine permit.  Any 
number if category D machines can be 
made available with such permit subject 
to other considerations, such as fire 
regulations and health and safety.  
Permits cannot be issued in respect of 
vessels or vehicles. 

21.2 If the operator of a family 
entertainment centre wants to make 
category C machines available in 
addition to category D machines, the 
operator will need to apply for a 
gaming machine general operating 
licence (Family Entertainment 
Centre) from the Commission and a 
premises licence from the Licensing 
Authority.   

21.3 Where a premises does not hold a 
premises licence but wishes to 
provide gaming machines, it may 
apply to the Licensing Authority for 
this permit.  It should be noted that 
the applicant must show that the 
premises will be wholly or mainly 
used for making gaming machines 
available for use (s238 of the Act). 

21.4 The Act states that a Licensing 
Authority may prepare a statement of 
principles that they propose to 

consider in determining the suitability 
of an applicant for a permit and in 
preparing this statement, and/or 
considering applications, it need not 
(but may) have regard to the 
licensing objectives and shall have 
regard to any relevant guidance 
issued by the Commission under 
section 245.  The Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance also states 
“In their three year licensing policy 
statement, Licensing Authorities may 
include a statement of principles that 
they propose to apply when 
exercising their functions in 
considering applications for permits 
...., Licensing Authorities will want to 
give weight to child protection issues” 
(para, 24.86). 

21.5 Guidance also states: “... An 
application for a permit may be 
granted only if the Licensing Authority 
is satisfied that the premises will be 
used as an unlicensed FEC, and if the 
chief officer of police has been 
consulted on the application. 
Licensing Authorities might wish to 
consider asking applications to 
demonstrate: 

• a full understanding of the 
maximum stakes and prizes of 
the gambling that is permissible 
in unlicensed FECs; 

• that the applicant has no 
relevant convictions (those that 
are set out in Schedule 7 of the 
Act; and 

• That staff are trained to have a 
full understanding of the 
maximum stakes and prizes.  

Page 53

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
38 

21.6 It should be noted that a Licensing 
Authority cannot attach conditions to 
this type of permit. 

21.7 This Licensing Authority will expect 
the applicant to show that there are 
policies and procedures in place to 
protect children from harm.  Harm in 
this context is not limited to harm 
from gambling but includes wider 
child protection considerations.  The 
efficiency of such policies and 
procedures will each be considered 
on their merits, however, they may 
include appropriate measures/training 
for staff as regards suspected truant 
school children on the premises, 
measures/training covering how staff 
would deal with unsupervised very 
young children being on the 
premises, or children causing 
perceived problems on/around the 
premises.   

21.8 This Licensing Authority will also 
expect, as per Gambling Commission 
Guidance, that applicants 
demonstrate a full understanding of 
the maximum stakes and prizes of 
the gambling that is permissible in 
unlicensed FECs; that the applicant 
has no relevant convictions 
(Schedule. 7 of the Act) and that staff 
are trained to have a full 
understanding of the maximum 
stakes and prizes. 

22. (Alcohol) Licensed Premises 
Gaming Machine Permits - 
(Schedule 13  paragraph 
4(1)) 

22.1 Automatic entitlement: up to 2 
machines - There is provision in the 
Act for premises licensed to sell 
alcohol for consumption on the 
premises, to automatically have 2 
gaming machines, of categories C 
and/or D.  The operator of the 
premises merely needs to notify the 
Licensing Authority and pay the 

prescribed fee.  The Licensing 
Authority can remove the automatic 
authorisation in respect of any 
particular premises if: 

• provision of the machines is not 
reasonably consistent with the 
pursuit of the licensing 
objectives; 

• gaming has taken place on the 
premises that breaches a 
condition of section 282 of the 
Gambling Act (i.e. that written 
notice has been provided to the 
Licensing Authority, that a fee 
has been provided and that any 
relevant code of practice issued 
by the Gambling Commission 
about the location and operation 
of the machine has been 
complied with); 

• the premises are mainly used for 
gaming; or 

• An offence under the Gambling 
Act has been committed on the 
premises. 

22.2 Permit: 3 or more machines - If the 
operator of alcohol licensed premises 
wishes to have more than 2 
machines, then an application must 
be made for a permit and the 
Licensing Authority must consider that 
application based upon the licensing 
objectives, any guidance and code of 
practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission issued under Section 24 
& 25 of the Gambling Act 2005, and 
“such matters as they think relevant.”    

22.3 This Licensing Authority considers 
that “such matters” will be decided on 
a case by case basis but generally 
there will be regard to the need to 
protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited 
by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that 
there will be sufficient measures to 
ensure that under 18 year olds do not 

Page 54

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
39 

have access to the adult only gaming 
machines.  Measures which will 
satisfy the authority that there will be 
no access may include the adult 
machines being in sight of the bar, or 
in the sight of staff that will monitor 
that the machines are not being used 
by those under 18.  Notices and 
signage may also be a help.  As 
regards the protection of vulnerable 
persons, applicants may wish to 
consider the provision of information 
leaflets/helpline numbers for 
organisations such as GamCare. 

22.4 This Licensing Authority recognises 
that some operators of alcohol 
licensed premises may apply for a 
premises licence for their non-alcohol 
licensed areas.  Any such application 
would most likely need to be applied 
for, and dealt with as an Adult 
Gaming Centre premises licence. 

22.5 The Licensing Authority may decide 
to grant the application with a smaller 
number of machines and/or a different 
category of machines than that 
applied for.  Conditions (other than 
these) cannot be attached. 

22.6 The holder of a permit must comply 
with any Code of Practice issued by 
the Gambling Commission about the 
location and operation of the 
machine. 

23. Prize Gaming Permits - 
(Principles on Permits - 
Schedule 14 paragraph 8 (3)) 

23.1 The Gambling Act 2005 states that a 
licensing authority may “prepare a 
statement of principles that they 
propose to apply in exercising their 
functions under this Schedule” which 
“may, in particular, specify matters 
that the licensing authority proposes 
to consider in determining the 
suitability of the applicant for a 
permit”.23.2 This Licensing Authority 
has prepared a Statement of 

Principles which is that the applicant 
should set out the types of gaming 
that he or she is intending to offer 
and that the applicant should 
demonstrate: 

• that they understand the limits 
to stakes and prizes that are 
set out in Regulations; 

• that the gaming offered is 
within the law; 

• Clear policies that outline the 
steps to be taken to protect 
children from harm. 

23.3 Prize gaming may be provided in 
bingo premises as a consequence of 
their bingo operating licence.  Any 
type of prize gaming may be provided 
in adult gaming centres and licensed 
family entertainment centres.  
Unlicensed family entertainment 
centres may offer equal chance prize 
gaming under a gaming machine 
permit.  Prize gaming without a permit 
may be provided by travelling fairs, 
providing that none of the gambling 
facilities at the fair amount to more 
than an ancillary amusement.  
Children and young people may 
participate in equal chance gaming 
only. 

23.4 In making its decision on an 
application for this permit the 
Licensing Authority does not need to 
have regard to the licensing 
objectives but must have regard to 
any Gambling Commission guidance 
(Schedule. 14 para. 8(3) of the Act). 

23.5 It should be noted that there are 
conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 
by which the permit holder must 
comply, but that the Licensing 
Authority cannot attach conditions.  
The conditions in the Act are: 

• the limits on participation fees, 
as set out in regulations, must 
be complied with; 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
40 

• all chances to participate in the 
gaming must be allocated on the 
premises on which the gaming is 
taking place and on one day; the 
game must be played and 
completed on the day the 
chances are allocated; and the 
result of the game must be 
made public in the premises on 
the day that it is played; 

• the prize for which the game is 
played must not exceed the 
amount set out in regulations (if 
a money prize), or the 
prescribed value (if non-
monetary prize); and 

• Participation in the gaming must 
not entitle the player to take part 
in any other gambling. 

24. Club Gaming and Club Machines 
Permits 

24.1 Members Clubs and Miners’ Welfare 
Institutes (but not Commercial Clubs) 
may apply for a Club Gaming Permit.  
The Club Gaming Permit will enable 
the premises to provide gaming 
machines (3 machines of categories 
B3A, B4, C or D), equal chance 
gaming and games of chance. 

Members Clubs and Miner’s Welfare 
Institutes – and also Commercial 
Clubs – may apply for a Club 
Machine Permit.  A Club Machine 
Permit will enable the premises to 
provide gaming machines (up to 3 
machines of categories B, C or D). 
N.B. Commercial Clubs may not site 
category B3A gaming machines 
offering lottery games in their club. 

This licensing authority notes that the 
Gambling Commission’s guidance 
states: 

25.464 The licensing authority has to 
satisfy itself that the club meets the 
requirements of the Act to obtain a 
club gaming permit. It is suggested 

that applicants for permits should be 
asked to supply sufficient information 
and documents to enable the 
licensing authority to take account of 
the matters discussed in paragraphs 
25.46 to 25.46, at the time they 
submit their applications to the 
licensing authority. The licensing 
authority has to satisfy itself that the 
club meets the requirements of the 
Act to obtain a Club Gaming Permit.  
In doing so it will take account of a 
number of matters outlined in 
sections 25.47-25.49 of the Gambling 
Commission’s guidance.  These 
include the constitution of the club, 
the frequency of gaming, and 
ensuring that there are more than 25 
members. A members’ club must be 
permanent in nature, not established 
to make commercial profit, and 
controlled by its members equally.  
Examples include working men’s 
clubs, branches of Royal British 
Legion and clubs with political 
affiliations". 

The club must be conducted ‘wholly 
or mainly’ for the purposes other than 
gaming, unless the gaming is 
permitted by separate regulations.  
The Secretary of State has made 
regulations and these cover bridge 
and whist clubs. 

24.2 The Guidance also states that 
licensing authorities may only refuse 
an application on the grounds that: 

• the applicant does not fulfil 
the requirements for a 
members’ or commercial 
club or miners’ welfare 
institute and therefore is not 
entitled to receive the type 
of permit for which it has 
applied; 

• the applicant’s premises are 
used wholly or mainly by 
children and/or young 
persons; 

Page 56

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
41 

• an offence under the Act or 
a breach of a permit has 
been committed by the 
applicant while providing 
gaming facilities; 

• a permit held by the 
applicant has been 
cancelled in the previous 
ten years; or 

• An objection has been 
lodged by the Gambling 
Commission or the police. 

24.3 There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure 
available under the Act for premises 
which hold a Club Premises 
Certificate under the Licensing Act 
2003 (Schedule. 12 paragraph 10).  
As the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance for local authorities states: 
"Under the fast-track procedure there 
is no opportunity for objections to be 
made by the Commission or the 
police, and the grounds upon which 
an authority can refuse a permit are 
reduced." and "The grounds on which 
an application under the process may 
be refused are: 

a) that the club is established 
primarily for gaming, other than 
gaming prescribed under 
schedule 12; 

b) that in addition to the 
prescribed gaming, the 
applicant provides facilities for 
other gaming; or 

c) That a club gaming permit or 
club machine permit issued to 
the applicant in the last ten 
years has been cancelled”. 

24.4 There are statutory conditions on club 
gaming permits that no child uses a 
category B or C machine on the 
premises and that the holder complies 
with any relevant provision of a code 
of practice about the location and 
operation of gaming machines. 

 

25. Temporary Use Notices (TUN) 
 
25.1 The Gambling Act 2005 enables the 

holder of an operating licence to give 
a Temporary Use Notice in respect of 
premises.  

 
 The TUN authorises the premises to 

lawfully be used for short period to 
provide facilities for gambling without 
the appropriate premises licence.  
The gambling must be in accordance 
with the terms of the TUN.  

 
 TUNs can only be made by the 

holder of an operating licence 
authorising them to provide the 
gaming activity proposed under the 
TUN.  

 
25.2 The holder of the operating licence 

must give notice to the Licensing 
Authority in whose area the premises 
are situated.  The Secretary of State 
has prescribed the form of the notice 
which must specify information 
including:  

• The type of gaming to be 
carried on  

• The premises where it will take 
place  

• The dates and times the 
gaming will take place  

• Any periods during the 
previous 12 months that a 
TUN has had effect for the 
same premises.  

• The date on which the notice 
is given  

• The nature of the event itself.  
 
25.3 The same set of premises may not be 

the subject of a TUN for more than 21 
days in any 12-month period, but may 
be the subject of several notices 
provided that the total does not 
exceed 21 days.  

 
25.4 If the premises have been the subject 

of one or more TUN for more than a 
total of 21 days in the past 12 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
42 

months, the Licensing Authority will 
issue a counter- notice that has the 
effect of stopping the TUN coming 
into effect.  Failure to comply with the 
counter-notice will be an offence.  
The Licensing Authority may issue a 
counter-notice which limits the 
number of days that the TUN comes 
into effect, bringing it within the 21-
day limit.  Such counter-notices 
require consultation with the applicant 
to ensure that the restrictions they 
impose do not result in an 
unworkable event.  

 
25.5 As notices may be given by different 

operators in respect of the same 
premises, the Licensing Authority will 
always check whether a counter-
notice is appropriate.  

 
25.6 A notice may not be given in respect 

of a vehicle.  A notice may be given 
in respect of a vessel, but only if it is 
a passenger vessel or a vessel that is 
situated at a fixed place.  A vessel at 
a fixed place would include a 
structure on water that is not intended 
to be able to move (such as an oil rig, 
or an artificially constructed island in 
the middle of a lake).  It should be 
noted that a notice can only be given 
in respect of a vessel that is moored 
permanently at place (i.e. it could 
move but it does not) if it is a 
passenger vessel.  

 
25.7 A TUN must be lodged with the 

Licensing Authority not less than 
three months and one day before the 
day on which the gambling event will 
begin.  The application, fee and 
counter-notices are specified by the 
Secretary of State.  The application 
must be copied to:  

• The Commission  

• The Police  

• HM Commissioners for 
Revenue and Customs  

• If applicable, any other 
Licensing Authority in whose 
area the premises are situated 

 
25.8 The person who is giving the TUN 

must ensure that the notice and the 
copies are with the recipients within 
seven days of the date of the notice.  
Where the premises are situated in 
the area covered by more than one 
authority, the person giving notice 
must send other notice to one 
authority and copy to the other(s).   

 
25.9 Where the Licensing Authority 

receives a notice, it must send a 
written acknowledgement as soon as 
reasonably practicable.  A written 
acknowledgement may include one 
sent by electronic mail.  

 
25.10 The Licensing Authority and other 

bodies to which the notice is copied 
should consider whether they wish to 
give notice of objection.  In 
considering whether to do so, they 
must have regard to the licensing 
objectives and if they consider that 
the gambling should not take place, 
or only with modifications, they must 
give a notice of objection to the 
person who gave the TUN.  Such a 
notice must be copied to the 
Licensing Authority (unless it is given 
by the Licensing Authority).  The 
notice of objection and the copy to 
the Licensing Authority must be given 
within 14 days of the date of the TUN.  
An objection and the copy to the 
Licensing Authority must be given 
within 14 days of the date of the TUN.  
An objection may be withdrawn by 
giving written notice to those to whom 
the notice of objection was sent and 
copied.  

 
25.11  The Licensing Authority has noted 

the timescales set out in the Act.  The 
need to give a notice of objection 
within 14 days of the date of the TUN 
means that there must be procedures 

Page 58

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
43 

to ensure that such notices are 
considered without delay so that, 
where appropriate, the opportunity to 
lodge an objection is not missed.  

 
25.12 If objections are received, the 

Licensing Authority must hold a 
hearing to listen to representations 
from the person who gave the TUN, 
all the objectors and nay person who 
was entitled to receive a copy of the 
notice.  If all the participants agree 
that a hearing is unnecessary, it may 
be dispensed with.  

 
25.13 Those who raise objections may offer 

modifications to the notice that will 
alleviate their concerns.  Remedies 
may include a reduction in the 
number of days when gambling 
occurs or a restriction on the type of 
gambling is permitted.  If the 
modifications are accepted by the 
applicant, a new TUN must be 
prepared and the original notice 
withdrawn.  The three-month time 
limit and fee will not apply to the new 
notice.  The person who made the 
original objection and proposed the 
modification may not object to the 
new notice, but others whom it is 
copied may object. If there are no 
new objections, there will be no need 
for a hearing.  

 
25.14 If the Licensing Authority, after a 

hearing has taken place or has been 
dispensed with, considers that the 
TUN should not have effect, it must 
issue a counter-notice which may:  

• Prevent the TUN from taking 
effect  

• Limit the activities that are 
permitted  

• Limit the time period of 
gambling  

• Allow the activity to take place 
subject to a specified condition  

 
25.15 If the Licensing Authority gives a 

counter-notice, it must give reasons 

for doing so and must copy the 
counter-notice to all those who 
receive copies of the TUN.  

 
25.16 If the Licensing Authority decides not 

to issue a counter-notice, the TUN 
will take effect.  The must give notice 
of its decision to the person who gave 
the TUN and others to whom it was 
copied.  

 
25.17 An appeal against the Licensing 

Authority’s decision may be made by 
the applicant, or any person entitled 
to receive a copy of the TUN, to the 
Magistrate’s Court within 21 days of 
receiving notice of the Licensing 
Authority’s decision.  There is a 
further right of appeal to the High 
Court on a point of law.  

 
25.18 If no objections are made within 14 

days of the date of the notice, the 
Licensing Authority must endorse the 
notice as valid and return it to the 
person who gave it.  If the endorsed 
copy of the notice is list, stolen or 
damaged, the person who gave the 
notice may request a new endorsed 
copy from the Licensing Authority, 
subject to a payment of a fee.  

 
25.19 Section 228 sets a time limit of six 

weeks for the completion of all 
proceedings on a TUN.  This includes 
considering whether to give a notice 
objection; hold a hearing, if it is 
necessary; and giving a counter-
notice or notice dismissing the 
objections.  

 
25.20 The person who gives a TUN may 

notify the authority that it is withdrawn 
at any time up to and during the time 
it has effect.  In those circumstances 
the notice will have no effect, and any 
un-lapsed period of time will not 
count towards the 21-day maximum 
for a TUN having effect on the 
premises.  

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
44 

25.21 While the gambling is taking place, a 
copy of the TUN must be displayed 
prominently on the premises.  It is an 
offence not to produce the notice 
endorsed by the authority when 
request to do so by a constable, an 
officer of HM Revenue and Customs, 
an enforcement officer, or an 
authorised local authority officer.   

 
26. Occasional Use Notices (OUN) 
 
26.1 Section 38 of the Act provides that 

where there is betting on a track on 
eight days or less in a calendar year, 
betting may be permitted by an OUN 
without the need for a full premises 
licence.   

 
26.2 While tracks are normally thought of 

as permanent racecourses, it should 
be noted that the meaning of ‘track’ in 
the Act covers not just horse 
racecourses or dog tracks, but also 
any other premises on any part of 
which a race or other sporting event 
takes place, or is intended to take 
place (section 353(1)).  

 
26.3 This means that land which as a 

number of uses, one of which fulfils 
the definition of track, can qualify for 
the OUN provisions (for example 
agricultural land upon which a point-
to –point meeting takes place).  Land 
used temporarily as a track can 
qualify, provided races or sporting 
events take place or will take place 
there.  The track need not be a 
permanent fixture.  

 
26.4 The intention behind OUN is to permit 

licensed betting operators (with 
appropriate permission from the 
Commission) to use tracks for short 
periods for conducting betting, where 
the event upon which the betting is to 
take place is of a temporary, 
infrequent nature.  The OUN 
dispenses with the need for a betting 

premises licence for the track in 
these circumstance.  

 
26.7 OUN may not be relied upon for more 

than eight days in a calendar year.  
Note that the requirement relates to a 
calendar year (starting 1January) and 
not to any period of 12 months.  The 
Secretary of State has the power to 
increase or decrease the number of 
OUN that are permitted, but there are 
currently no plans to use this power.  

 
26.8 This Licensing Authority keeps a 

record of the number of notices 
served in relation to each track.  

 
26.9 A notice must be served by a person 

who is responsible for the 
administration of events on the track 
or by an occupier of the track.  The 
notice be served on the Licensing 
Authority and copied to the Chief 
Officer of Police for the area in which 
the track is located.  The notice must 
specify the day on which it has effect.  
Notices may be given in relation to 
consecutive days, so long as the 
overall limit of eight days is not 
exceeded in the calendar year.  

 
26.10 Provided that the notice will not result 

in betting facilities being available for 
more than eight days in a calendar 
year, there is no provision for 
counter-notices or objections to be 
submitted.  

 
26.11 The Act does not require the 

applicant or the Licensing Authority to 
notify the Commission that an OUN 
has been given.  However, the 
Commission does require Licensing 
Authorities to submit returns showing 
how OUN may were received during 
each quarter.  

 
26.12 It should be noted that betting 

operators cannot provide gaming 
machines at tracks by virtue of an 
OUN.  Gaming machines may be 

Page 60

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
45 

made available by betting operators 
and this is reliant on a betting 
premises licence, which refers to a 
specific licensed area, but does not 
enable the operator to site gaming 
machines outside of that area.  

 

 

 

  

Page 61

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
46 

Appendix 1 – List of 
Consultees 
Age UK  
Barrow & District Offices, Lakeland House, 
Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness LA14 1XE 
info@ageukbarrow.org.uk 
 
Askam & Ireleth Parish Council 
aandipc@yahoo.com 

Association of British Bookmakers 
Ground Floor, Warwick House, 25 
Buckingham Palace Road, London SW1W 
0PP mail@abb.uk.com 

Pub Watch Scheme 
South Cumbria Area Police HQ, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria  

Barrow BID 

BACTA 
134 Buckingham Palace Road, London, 
SW1 W9SA info@bacta.org.uk  

Bangladeshi Caterers 
Association, 403 Harrow Road, London 
W9 3NF info@bca1960.com 

Berwin, Leighton Paisner, 
Adelaide House, London Bridge, London, 
press@blplaw.com 

Bingo Association 
Lexham House, 75 High Street North, 
Dunstable info@bingo-association.co.uk 

British Association of Leisure Parks, Piers & 
Attractions Ltd 
Queens House, 55-56 Lincoln’s Inn Fields, 
London WC2A 3BH info@balppa.org 

British Beer & Pub Association 
Ground Floor, Brewers’ Hall, Aldermanbury 
Square, London EC2V 7HR 
contact@beerandpub.com 

British Holiday and Home Parks Assoc. 
Great Western Road, Gloucester GL1 3ND 
enquiries@bhhpa.org.uk 

British Institute of Innkeeping 
Infor House, 1 Lakeside Road, Farnborough 
GU14 6XP 
Tel: 01276 684449 enquiries@bii.org 

British Transport Police 
Citadel Station, Carlisle, Cumbria CA1 1QZ 
Tel: 01228 405000 (Officer in charge 
Inspector Adrian Yorston) 
first_contact@btp.pnn.police.uk 

Business in Sport & Leisure 
17a Chartfield Avenue, Putney, London 
SW15 6DX 
brigid.simmonds@btconnect.com 

Dalton with Newton Town Council 
townclerk@daltoncouncil.org.uk 

CADAS 
52 Paradise Street, Barrow in Furness, 
LA14 1JG 
info@cadas.co.uk 

Citizens Advice 
Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria 
LA14 5QW  

Cumbria Disability Network 
Equality Cumbria, PO Box 252, Carlisle 
CA23 6WZ 

Cumbria Health & Safety Liaison Group 
c/o Emma Brass, Eden District Council 
Emma.brass@eden.gov.uk 

Cumbria Volunteer Bureau 
6 Hobson Court, Gillian Way, Penrith 
CA11 9GQ 
info@cumbriaCVS.org.uk 
 
Cumbria Chamber of Commerce. 
info@cumbriachamber.co.uk 

Cumbria Constabulary 
Chief Officer of Police, Cumbria 
Constabulary 
enquiries@cumbria.police.uk 

Cumbria County Council 
Community Safety Manager, 
Cumbria Fire and Rescue Headquarters, 
Carleton Avenue, 

Page 62

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

mailto:info@ageukbarrow.org.uk
mailto:aandipc@yahoo.com
mailto:mail@abb.uk.com
mailto:info@bacta.org.uk
mailto:info@bca1960.com
mailto:press@blplaw.com
mailto:info@bingo-association.co.uk
mailto:info@balppa.org
mailto:contact@beerandpub.com
mailto:enquiries@bhhpa.org.uk
mailto:enquiries@bii.org
mailto:first_contact@btp.pnn.police.uk
mailto:brigid.simmonds@btconnect.com
mailto:townclerk@daltoncouncil.org.uk
mailto:info@cadas.co.uk
mailto:Emma.brass@eden.gov.uk
mailto:info@cumbriaCVS.org.uk
mailto:info@cumbriachamber.co.uk
mailto:enquiries@cumbria.police.uk


 

 
47 

Penrith CA10 2FA 
mark.clement@cumbria.gov.uk 

Director of Public Health, Colin Cox, 
Cumbria County Council 
publichealthenquiries@cumbria.gov.uk 

Done Bros. 
Spectrum Arena, 56-58 Benson Road, 
Warrington WA3 7PQ 

Elected Members, Barrow Borough Council 

Enterprise Inns 
Ei Group Plc, 3 Monkspath Hall Road, 
Solihull, 
West Midlands B90 4SJ 
Tel: 0121 733 7700 

Furness College including Barrow 6th Form, 
Channelside, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria 
info@furness.ac.uk 
 
The Gambling Commission 
info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

Gamcare 
Head Office, 2nd Floor, 7-11 St. John’s Hill, 
London SW11 1TR 
info@gamcare.org.uk 

Gamestec Leisure Limited 
Low Lane, Leeds, LS18 4ER, 
info@gamestec.co.uk 

Greyhound Board of Great Britain 
6 New Bridge Street, London EC4V 6AB 
Tel: 020 7822 0900 Megan Fellows 
Megan.Fellows@gbgb.org.uk 

Hammonds Solicitors, 
Rutland House, 148 Edmund Street, 
Birmingham 
michelle.adams@squirepb.com 

Health & Safety Executive 
2 Victoria Place, Carlisle, CA1 1ER 

HM Revenue and Customs, PO Box 29997, 
Glasgow G70 5AB 

Simon Fell MP 
132 Cavendish Street, Barrow-In-Furness, 
LA14 1DJ 
simon.fell.mp@parliament.uk 
 
Ladbrokes Coral Group 
Newcastle House, Castle Boulevard, 
Nottingham, NG7 1FT 
Tel; 0115 948 5000 
ladbrokes.media@ladbrokescoral.com 
coral.media@ladbrokescoral.com 

Law Society 
North West, Central Admin Unit, 5th Floor, 
Capital Tower, Greyfriars Road, Cardiff 
CF10 3AG. 
Regional Manager Joanne McLead 
joanne.mcleoad@lawsociety.org.uk 

National Casino Forum 
Carlyle House, 235-237 Vauxhall Bridge 
Road, London SW1V 1EJ 
info@nationalcasinoforum.co.uk 

NSPCC, 7 Chatsworth Square, Carlisle 

NHS Cumbria Trust HQ 
Lonsdale Unit, Penrith Hospital, Bridge 
Lane, 
Penrith 
Communications.helpdesk@cumbria.nhs.uk 

Poppleston Allen 
Licensing Solicitors, The Lace Market, 
Nottingham, NG1 1LS 
Richard Bradley email: 
R.Bradley@popall.co.uk 

Prize Coin Equipment 
Central Avenue, Gretna 
derekpce@aol.com 

Punch Taverns 
Jubilee House, Second Ave, Burton on 
Trent 
DE14 2WF 
enquiries@punchtaverns.com 

Racecourse Association Ltd, Winkfield 
Road, 
Ascot, Berkshire SL5 7HX 
info@racecourseassociation.co.uk 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

mailto:mark.clement@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:publichealthenquiries@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:info@furness.ac.uk
mailto:info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
mailto:info@gamcare.org.uk
mailto:info@gamestec.co.uk
mailto:Megan.Fellows@gbgb.org.uk
mailto:michelle.adams@squirepb.com
mailto:simon.fell.mp@parliament.uk
mailto:ladbrokes.media@ladbrokescoral.com
mailto:coral.media@ladbrokescoral.com
mailto:joanne.mcleoad@lawsociety.org.uk
mailto:info@nationalcasinoforum.co.uk
mailto:Communications.helpdesk@cumbria.nhs.uk
mailto:R.Bradley@popall.co.uk
mailto:derekpce@aol.com
mailto:enquiries@punchtaverns.com
mailto:info@racecourseassociation.co.uk


 

 
48 

South Cumbria Community Safety 
Partnership 
Email: S.Bylth@southlakeland.gov.uk 

The Well, Barrow-in-Furness. 
info@thewell2.co.uk 

William Hill Plc 
Greenside House, 50 Station Road, Wood 
Green, London, N22 7TP 
Email: support@willhill.com 

 

Note: This list is not intended to be 

exclusive. Comments and observations will 

be welcome from anyone who will be 

affected by this policy. 

 

 

 

 

Page 64

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

mailto:S.Bylth@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:info@thewell2.co.uk
mailto:support@willhill.com


 

 
49 

Appendix 2: Responsible Authorities 
 
Public Protection Manager 
Public Protection Services 
Barrow Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Duke Street 
Barrow-in-Furness 
LA14 2LD 
Tel: 01229 876543 
Email: commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk 
  

Chief Officer of Police 
Licensing 
Cumbria Constabulary 
Barrow Police Station 
Andrews Way 
Barrow-in-Furness 
LA14 2UE 
Tel: 101 
Email: sara.seath@cumbria.police.uk  
 

Commercial Team (Health & Safety) 
Public Protection Services 
Town Hall 
Duke Street 
Barrow-in-Furness 
LA14 2LD 
Tel: 01229 876543 
Email: commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk 
 

Fire Safety Group Manager  
Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service 
B Division HQ 
Phoenix Road 
Barrow-in-Furness 
LA14 2NS 
Tel: 01229 407800 
Email: barrow.technical@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

Environmental Protection Team 
Public Protection Services 
Town Hall 
Duke Street 
Barrow-in-Furness 
LA14 2LD 
Tel: 01229 876543 
Email: environment@barrowbc.gov.uk 
 

Trading Standards (Licensing) 
Cumbria County Council  
Neville House 
Neville Street 
Ulverston 
LA12 0BL 
Tel: 01539 713594 
Email: trading.standards@cumbriacc.gov.uk 
 

Development Services Manager 
Town Hall 
Duke Street 
Barrow-in-Furness 
LA14 2LD 
Tel: 01229 876543 
Email: consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk 
 

Health and Safety Executive (HSE) 
2 Victoria Place 
Carlisle 
CA1 1ER 
Tel: 0300 003 1747  
Web: www.HSE.gov.uk    
(where the HSE is the enforcing authority for 
health & safety matters in the premises) 
 

Public Health Lead 
Public Health, Cumbria County Council 
The Courts 
Carlisle. CA3 8NA 
Tel: 01228 606060 
Email: publichealthenquiries@cumbria.gov.uk 

Cumbria Safeguarding Children Partnership (CSCP) 
Childrens Services 
117 Botchergate 
Carlisle 
CA1 1RD 
Tel: 01228 226898 
Email: cscplscb@cumbria.gov.uk 

 
Other Useful Addresses 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

mailto:commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:sara.seath@cumbria.police.uk
file:///C:/Users/syoneill/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/99V75MNJ/commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:barrow.technical@cumbria.gov.uk
file:///C:/Users/syoneill/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/99V75MNJ/environment@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:trading.standards@cumbriacc.gov.uk
mailto:consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk
http://www.hse.gov.uk/
mailto:publichealthenquiries@cumbria.gov.uk


 

 
50 

 
 
British Beer and Pub Association 
Market Towers 
1 Nine Elms Lane 
London 
SW8 5NQ 
Tel: 0207 627 9191 
Email:  web@beerandpub.com 
Web:    www.beerandpub.com 

British Institute of Innkeeping 
Wessex House 
80 Park Street 
Camberley 
Surrey GU15 3PT 
Tel: 01276 684 449 
Email: reception@bii.org 
Web: www.bii.org 
 

Consumer Credit Counselling Service 
Wade House 
Merrion Centre 
Leeds LS2 8NG 
Web: www.cccs.co.uk 

Disability Rights Commission Helpline 
Freepost MID01264 
Stratford Upon Avon  
CV37 9BR 
Tel: 08457 622 633 
Web: www.drc-gb.org 
 

Equity 
Guild house 
Upper Martins Lane 
London 
WC2H 9EG 
Tel: 0207 379 6000 
Email: info@equity.org.uk 
Web: www.equity.org.uk 
 

Gamcare 
2nd Floor 
7-11 St John’s Hill 
London SW11 1TR 
Tel: 020 7378 5200 
Helpline: 0845 6000 133 
Email: info@gamcare.org.uk 
Web: gamcare.org.uk 
 

Gamblers Anonymous 
PO Box 5382 
London W1A 6SA 
Local Meetings: 
7.30pm Monday 
Church of Scotland Chapel Street Carlisle CA1 1JA  
www.gamblersanonymous.org.uk/question.htm 
 

Money Advice Trust 
Bridge House 
181 Queen Victoria Street  
London EC4V 4DZ 
Web: www.moneyadvicetrust.org/home.html 

South Cumbria Magistrates’ Courts Service 
Abbey Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Page 66

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

mailto:web@beerandpub.com
http://www.beerandpub.com/
mailto:reception@bii.org
http://www.bii.org/
http://www.cccs.co.uk/
http://www.drc-gb.org/
mailto:info@equity.org.uk
http://www.equity.org.uk/
mailto:info@gamcare.org.uk
http://www.gamblersanonymous.org.uk/question.htm
http://www.moneyadvicetrust.org/home.html


 

 
51 

Appendix 3 - Categories of Gaming Machines 
 

Category of Machine Maximum Stake (from 2019) Maximum Prize 

A Unlimited Unlimited 

B1 £5 

£10,000* or £20,000 

* With option of max £20,000 
linked progressive jackpot on 
premises basis only 

B2 £1002  £500 

B3A £2 £500 

B3 £2 £500 

B4 £2 £400 

C £1 £100 

D non-money prize D 30p10p cash or  
30p none cash 

£8£5 Cash  
£8 Tokens 

D non-money prize (crane 
grab machine only) 

£1 £50 

D combined money and 
nonmoney prize 

10p £8 (of which no more than 
£5 may be a money prize) 

D combined money and 
nonmoney prize (coin pusher 
or penny falls machine) 

20p £20 (of which no more than 
£10 may be a money prize) 

The above figures may be subject to change 

 

 Machine Category 

Premises Type A B1 B2 B3 B4 C D 

Large casino 
(machine/table 
ratio of 5-1 up to 
maximum) 

 

Maximum of 150 machines 

Any combination of machines on categories B to D (except B3A 
machines) within the total of 150 (subject to machine/table ratio) 

Page 67

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
52 

Small casino 
(machine/table 
ratio of 2-1 up to 
maximum) 

 

 

 

 

 

Maximum of 80 machines 

Any combination of machines in categories B to D(except B3A 
machines) within the total limit of 80 (subject to machine/table 
ratio) 

Pre-2005 Act 
casinos (no 
machine/table 
ratio) 

 

 

 

 

 

Maximum of 20 machines categories B to D (except B3A machines) 
or any number of C or D machines instead 

Betting premises 
and tracks 
occupied by Pool 
Betting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Maximum of 4 machines categories B2 to D (except B3A 
Machines) 

Bingo Premises 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Maximum of 20% of 
the total number of 
gaming machines 
which are available 
for use on the 
premises categories 
B3 or B4 

No limit on C or D 
machines 

Adult gaming 
centres 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Maximum of 20% of 
the total number of 
gaming machines 
which are available 
for use on the 
premises categories 
B3 or B4 

No limit on C or D 
machines 

Licensed Family 
entertainment 
centre 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No limit on category 
Cor D machines 

Family 
entertainment 
centre (with 
permit) 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No limit on 
category D 
Machines 

Clubs or miners’ 
welfare institutes 
(with permits) 4 

    

 

Maximum of 3 machines in 
categories B3A or B4 to D 

Qualifying alcohol 
licensed premises      

1 or 2 machines of 
category C or D 
automatic upon 
notification 

Qualifying alcohol 
licensed premises 
(with licensed 
premises gaming 
machine permit) 

     

 

Number of category 
C-D machines as 

specified on permit 

Travelling fair 
      

No limit on 
category D 
machines 

Page 68

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
53 

 A B1 B2 B3 B4 C D 

 
1. Bingo premises licences are entitled to make available for use a number of category B 
gaming machines not exceeding 20% of the total number of gaming machines on the premises. 
Where a premises licence was granted before 13 July 2011, they are entitled to make available 
eight category B gaming machines, or 20% of the total number of gaming machines, whichever 
is the greater. Category B machines at bingo premises are restricted to subcategory B3 and B4 
machines, but not B3A machines. 
 
2. Adult gaming centres are entitled to make available for use a number of category B gaming 
machines not exceeding 20% of the total number of gaming machines which are available for 
use on the premises and any number of category C or D machines. Where a premises licence 
was granted before 13 July 2011, they are entitled to make available four category B gaming 
machines, or 20% of the total number of gaming machines, whichever is the greater. Category 
B machines at adult gaming centres are restricted to sub-category B3 and B4 machines but not 
B3A machines. 
 
3. Only premises that are wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available may 
hold an unlicensed FEC gaming machine permit or an FEC premises licence. Category C 
machines may only be sited within licensed FECs and where an FEC permit is in force. They 
must be in a separate area to ensure the segregation and supervision of machines that may 
only be played by adults. There is no power of the licensing authority to set a limit on the 
number of machines under the FEC permit. 
 
4. Members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes with a club gaming permit or with a club 
machine permit, are entitled to site a total of three machines in categories B3A to D but only one 
B3A machine can be sited as part of this entitlement. Commercial clubs with club machine or 
gaming permits are entitled to a total of three machines in categories B4 to D. 

  

Page 69

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
54 

Appendix 4 - Delegation of Functions 

Matter to be dealt with 
Full 
Council 

Regulatory Committee or 
Sub-committee  

Officers 

Final approval of three year 
licensing policy 

X   

Policy not to permit casinos X   

Fee setting 

 
(when appropriate) 

 X  

Application for premises 
licences 

 
Where representations have 
been received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no representations 
received/representations 
have been withdrawn 

Application for a variation to a 
licence 

 
Where representations have 
been received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no representations 
received/representations 
have been withdrawn 

Application for a transfer of a 
licence 

 
Where representations have 
been received from the 
Commission 

Where no representations 
received from the 
Commission 

Application for a provisional 
statement 

 
Where representations have 
been received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no representations 
received/representations 
have been withdrawn 

Review of a premises licence  X  

Application for club gaming/club 
machine permits 

 
Where objections have been 
made (and not withdrawn) 

Where no objections 
made/objections have been 
withdrawn 

Cancellation of club gaming/club 
machine permits 

 X  

Applications for other permits  X (for more than 4 machines) X (up to 4 machines) 

Cancellation of licensed 
premises gaming machine 
permits 

  X 

Consideration of temporary use 
notice 

  X 

Decision to give a counter notice 
to a temporary use notice 

 X  

X - Indicates at the lowest level to which decisions can be delegated. 

Page 70

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 

 
55 

Appendix 5 - Map of the District 
   

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



46

Appendix 1 – List of 
Consultees
Age UK 
Barrow & District Offices, Lakeland House, 
Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness LA14 1XE
info@ageukbarrow.org.uk

Askam & Ireleth Parish Council
aandipc@yahoo.com

Association of British Bookmakers
Ground Floor, Warwick House, 25 
Buckingham Palace Road, London SW1W 
0PP mail@abb.uk.com

Pub Watch Scheme
South Cumbria Area Police HQ, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria

Barrow BID

BACTA
134 Buckingham Palace Road, London, 
SW1 W9SA info@bacta.org.uk

Bangladeshi Caterers
Association, 403 Harrow Road, London
W9 3NF info@bca1960.com

Berwin, Leighton Paisner,
Adelaide House, London Bridge, London,
press@blplaw.com

Bingo Association
Lexham House, 75 High Street North,
Dunstable info@bingo-association.co.uk

British Association of Leisure Parks, Piers &
Attractions Ltd
Queens House, 55-56 Lincoln’s Inn Fields,
London WC2A 3BH info@balppa.org

British Beer & Pub Association
Ground Floor, Brewers’ Hall, Aldermanbury
Square, London EC2V 7HR
contact@beerandpub.com

British Holiday and Home Parks Assoc.
Great Western Road, Gloucester GL1 3ND
enquiries@bhhpa.org.uk

British Institute of Innkeeping
Infor House, 1 Lakeside Road, Farnborough
GU14 6XP
Tel: 01276 684449 enquiries@bii.org

British Transport Police
Citadel Station, Carlisle, Cumbria CA1 1QZ
Tel: 01228 405000 (Officer in charge 
Inspector Adrian Yorston) 
first_contact@btp.pnn.police.uk

Business in Sport & Leisure
17a Chartfield Avenue, Putney, London
SW15 6DX
brigid.simmonds@btconnect.com

Dalton with Newton Town Council
townclerk@daltoncouncil.org.uk

CADAS
52 Paradise Street, Barrow in Furness, 
LA14 1JG
info@cadas.co.uk

Citizens Advice
Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria 
LA14 5QW 

Cumbria Disability Network
Equality Cumbria, PO Box 252, Carlisle
CA23 6WZ

Cumbria Health & Safety Liaison Group
c/o Emma Brass, Eden District Council
Emma.brass@eden.gov.uk

Cumbria Volunteer Bureau
6 Hobson Court, Gillian Way, Penrith
CA11 9GQ
info@cumbriaCVS.org.uk

Cumbria Chamber of Commerce.
info@cumbriachamber.co.uk

Cumbria Constabulary
Chief Officer of Police, Cumbria 
Constabulary
enquiries@cumbria.police.uk

Cumbria County Council
Community Safety Manager,
Cumbria Fire and Rescue Headquarters, 
Carleton Avenue,

Page 73

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



47

Penrith CA10 2FA
mark.clement@cumbria.gov.uk

Director of Public Health, Colin Cox,
Cumbria County Council
publichealthenquiries@cumbria.gov.uk

Done Bros.
Spectrum Arena, 56-58 Benson Road,
Warrington WA3 7PQ

Elected Members, Barrow Borough Council

Enterprise Inns
Ei Group Plc, 3 Monkspath Hall Road, 
Solihull,
West Midlands B90 4SJ
Tel: 0121 733 7700

Furness College including Barrow 6th Form, 
Channelside, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria
info@furness.ac.uk

The Gambling Commission
info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Gamcare
Head Office, 2nd Floor, 7-11 St. John’s Hill,
London SW11 1TR
info@gamcare.org.uk

Gamestec Leisure Limited
Low Lane, Leeds, LS18 4ER,
info@gamestec.co.uk

Greyhound Board of Great Britain
6 New Bridge Street, London EC4V 6AB
Tel: 020 7822 0900 Megan Fellows
Megan.Fellows@gbgb.org.uk

Hammonds Solicitors,
Rutland House, 148 Edmund Street,
Birmingham
michelle.adams@squirepb.com

Health & Safety Executive
2 Victoria Place, Carlisle, CA1 1ER

HM Revenue and Customs, PO Box 29997,
Glasgow G70 5AB

Simon Fell MP
132 Cavendish Street, Barrow-In-Furness, 
LA14 1DJ
simon.fell.mp@parliament.uk

Ladbrokes Coral Group
Newcastle House, Castle Boulevard,
Nottingham, NG7 1FT
Tel; 0115 948 5000
ladbrokes.media@ladbrokescoral.com
coral.media@ladbrokescoral.com

Law Society
North West, Central Admin Unit, 5th Floor,
Capital Tower, Greyfriars Road, Cardiff
CF10 3AG.
Regional Manager Joanne McLead
joanne.mcleoad@lawsociety.org.uk

National Casino Forum
Carlyle House, 235-237 Vauxhall Bridge 
Road, London SW1V 1EJ
info@nationalcasinoforum.co.uk

NSPCC, 7 Chatsworth Square, Carlisle

NHS Cumbria Trust HQ
Lonsdale Unit, Penrith Hospital, Bridge 
Lane,
Penrith
Communications.helpdesk@cumbria.nhs.uk

Poppleston Allen
Licensing Solicitors, The Lace Market,
Nottingham, NG1 1LS
Richard Bradley email: 
R.Bradley@popall.co.uk

Prize Coin Equipment
Central Avenue, Gretna
derekpce@aol.com

Punch Taverns
Jubilee House, Second Ave, Burton on 
Trent
DE14 2WF
enquiries@punchtaverns.com

Racecourse Association Ltd, Winkfield 
Road,
Ascot, Berkshire SL5 7HX
info@racecourseassociation.co.uk

Page 74

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



48

South Cumbria Community Safety 
Partnership
Email: S.Bylth@southlakeland.gov.uk

The Well, Barrow-in-Furness. 
info@thewell2.co.uk

William Hill Plc
Greenside House, 50 Station Road, Wood
Green, London, N22 7TP
Email: support@willhill.com

Note: This list is not intended to be 
exclusive. Comments and observations will 
be welcome from anyone who will be 
affected by this policy.

Page 75

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Council 

7 December 2021 

Local Government Reorganisation – Implementation Reserve 

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report summaries the resources required to fund the implementation costs 

of Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) within Cumbria, and requests 

appropriate delegations to the Council’s S151 Officer to identify a funding source 

from reserves held by the Council in order to contribute up to £1.6m to a County-

wide Implementation Reserve. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1  It is recommended that Council:-  

 

(1) Note the requirement for a county wide LGR Implementation Reserve;  

(2) Approve the creation of a reserve containing the £450,000 already 

identified for LGR and retain this in order to fund any costs which the 

Council may incur itself which are outwith the eligibility criteria for the 

Cumbria-wide Implementation Reserve; 

(3) Approve the creation of an implementation reserve/budget provision of up 

to £1.6m as the Council’s contribution to the LGR implementation costs, 

subject to contributions being approved by all the Cumbrian authorities;  

(4) Delegate responsibility to the Director of Resources (S151 Officer) to 

identify a funding source for (3) from existing financial reserves but initially 

approve the funding from the Contingency Reserve; 

(5) Authorise the Director of Resources to pay the contribution (or the 

appropriate proportion thereof) in (3) to Cumbria County Council in 

January 2022; 

(6) Note the governance arrangements and scheme of delegation regarding 

the use of the reserve as set out in the report (Paragraph 3.9 and 

associated appendices); and 

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



(7) Delegate responsibility to the Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) following consultation with the Leader, the Chair of the Executive 

Committee and the Director of Resources, to agree the terms contained 

within the Memorandum of Understanding, with all the other Cumbrian 

authorities, for the Implementation Reserve and sign the same. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  Following decision of the Secretary of State in July 2021 each local authority 

within Cumbria was notified that, subject to Parliamentary approval, two new 

unitary authorities would replace the current local government structure in 

Cumbria, with the Barrow, Eden and South Lakeland areas being the footprint for 

a new unitary authority covering the east of the County, and Allerdale, Carlisle 

and Copeland, being a footprint for a new unitary authority covering the west of 

the County, effective from 1 April 2023.  All six districts and Cumbria County 

Council will cease to exist in their current format on 31 March 2023. 

 

3.3. The East/West submission suggested that estimated annual savings of between 

£19.1m and £31.6m would be achieved and that the transition (implementation) 

would require a total one-off investment of between £17.6m and £23.8m. 

 

3.4. Following the announcement, the Cumbria Chief Finance Officer’s Group, 

attended by all Section 151 Officers of the seven Cumbrian authorities, have 

undertaken a high-level assessment of the financial impact of LGR and provided 

some indicative figures for implementation which have also been sense checked 

against other authorities which have been through the LGR process. 

 

3.5. This report, therefore, provides an update to the indicative cost of 

implementation.  It also covers the establishment of a County-wide LGR 

Implementation Reserve including governance arrangements, funding proposals 

and the required scheme of delegation for relevant officers.  

 

3.6. This report does not deal with the costs of transformation nor how these will be 

funded, nor the level of savings these could generate, as these will be decisions 

for the new shadow authorities, once established, and will be dealt with at a later 

date. 

  

PROPOSALS  

 

3.7 Costs of Implementation 

 

3.7.1 The indicative, and high level, budget for implementation of “safe and legal” 

authorities on 1 April 2023 is £18.92m as set out in Table 1. 

 

East/West Unitary Authorities 

Indicative Implementation Costs 
£ 

  

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



Implementation 2,266,667 

External Support Costs 5,500,000 

Internal Programme Management 4,000,000 

ICT Costs 4,000,000 

Sub- total 15,766,667 

Contingency (20%) 3,153,333 

Total Estimated Implementation costs 18,920,000 

  

   Table 1: Indicative Implementation costs 

 

3.7.2 These costs and assumptions will continue to be updated as the financial 

modelling develops and the workstreams and themes, established by the LGR 

Programme Board, commence their work, and identify the level of resources 

required for delivery. 

 

3.7.3 It is likely that the spend may be incurred over three financial years (2021-2022 

to 2023-2024) with some costs incurred after vesting day.  Work is ongoing to 

fully understand the legacy position and how this will be supported. 

 

3.7.4 For each of the categories of spend in Table 1, detailed definitions are being 

developed in order to ensure consistency of approach for any expenditure 

incurred; Appendix 1 provides the detail to date.  

  

3.8 Implementation Reserve 

 

3.8.1 It is therefore proposed that a County-wide Implementation Reserve be 

established, hosted by Cumbria County Council, in order to effectively and 

efficiently record, manage and monitor spend on the implementation of the new 

authorities.  This is the preferred choice of the LGR Programme Board supported 

by the Finance and Commercial Programme Board, especially given the level of 

contribution being made by the County Council. 

 

3.8.2 It is further proposed that all seven Cumbrian authorities contribute to the 

reserve with the County Council contributing 50% and the remaining 50% split 

equally between the district authorities.  Therefore, the Council’s contribution will 

be up to £1.6m. 

 

3.8.3 Following approval by the individual authorities, it is proposed that the reserve be 

established for January 2022 and be utilised in accordance with the governance 

arrangements set out in Paragraph 3.9 and in the associated appendices.  

 

3.9. Governance Arrangements of Reserve 

 

3.9.1 These governance arrangements are to be agreed by each Council through their 

own relevant arrangements and the following will form part of the delegated 

requirements: 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



 

3.9.2 Purpose of Reserve - To provide funds to resource the indicative 

implementation costs associated with LGR in Cumbria.  Appendix 2 sets out 

more detail on the criteria to be used to determine whether the costs are eligible 

and are an appropriate charge to the Reserve. 

 

3.9.3 Conditions of Use – Once paid over to Cumbria County Council, the 

management of the Reserve rests with the Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) for 

LGR.  Approval to release funds from the reserve to individual themes and 

workstream programme boards (allocation being dependent upon their activity 

and responsibility) can only be given by the SRO (or a suitably appointed 

alternate officer) via an Officer Decision notice, under delegated powers.  A 

scheme of delegation will need to be established by Cumbria County Council for 

the use and monitoring of the reserve.  

 

 Allocations will be agreed to individual themes and workstream programme 

boards prior to January 2022 so that they can progress with spend on 

essential support prior to that date; 

 

 Any advance spend incurred by individual authorities prior to January 2022 

will be funded by each authority and recorded as such until such time that the 

collective reserve is established and the costs be fully charged against the 

reserve through a net payment being made after appropriate deductions 

(hence the reference to proportions in the recommendations); 

 

 Throughout the transition process, and the use of the reserve for the 

programme delivery, compliance with relevant procurement legislation will be 

required and adherence to the County Council’s internal governance 

arrangements post January 2022; and 

 

 Individual spending and virement limits will be detailed in the scheme of 

delegation. 

 

3.9.4 Monitoring of the Reserve – Spending delegations will be made to the 

individual Workstream Sponsors as set out in the draft Scheme of delegation, 

with monthly reporting of spend to the LGR Programme Board via the Finance 

and Commercial Programme Board.  From the January 2022 a regular report on 

a monthly basis will be taken to the Programme Board group of commitments 

and actual expenditure against the Implementation Reserve as a whole and 

against individual budgets.  These will come from the individual Boards for the 

themes and workstreams.  These reports will also be made available to each 

individual authority. 

 

3.9.5 A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) will need to be prepared, agreed and 

signed by all the Cumbrian Councils which will set out clear roles and 

responsibilities in relation to the Implementation Reserve and delegations in this 

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



respect are sought.  This MOU will reflect the principles as set out in this report 

and associated appendices. 

 

3.9.6 At the end of the programme any Implementation Reserve not utilised will be 

equally allocated to the two new Unitary authorities.  This will be as part of the 

initial establishment of the Unitary authorities with one Unitary hosting the ring-

fenced reserve initially until all commitments and expenditure have been fully 

accounted for.  It is expected implementation costs will continue to be incurred 

after vesting day. 

 

3.9.7 There will need to be formal secondment mechanisms for staff who will become 

part of the programme to enable appropriate costs to be covered so that host 

authorities’ budgets can then fund any backfill arrangements. 

 

3.9.8 The accounting treatment of the reserve for the 2021-2022 year end accounts is 

being considered to ensure that all authorities comply with relevant accounting 

standards and generally accepted accounting practice.  This will form part of the 

outturn reports and Statement of Accounts for 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 as 

presented to Members. 

 

3.10 Funding Proposals  

 

3.10.1 Individual authorities will need to identify a funding source whether this be via a 

review of general and earmarked reserves, the submission of a capitalisation 

direction to MLUHC (utilising capital receipts and/or prudential borrowing) and/or 

alternative sources of funding.  The Council is asked to delegate responsibility to 

the S151 Officer to identify a funding source with the Contingency Reserve 

identified initially – a review of financial reserves will be carried out and if the 

source of funding changes an update will be reported to the Executive 

Committee. 

 

3.11 Risks 

 

3.11.1 There are several risks to consider in terms of the Implementation Reserve 

which Members should be aware of: 

 

 The estimated costs, as set out at Table 1, are only indicative at this stage and 

the position will continue to be updated as the financial modelling develops and 

the workstreams and themes, established by the LGR Programme Board, 

commence their work, and identify the level of resources required for delivery.  

 

 Spend is not managed effectively; however, by having a collective reserve which 

is managed and monitored centrally in line with approved delegations and robust 

governance arrangements, this risk will be mitigated. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not applicable to the recommendations. 

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1  No other options have been considered as the Council is obligated to support the 

process of LGR. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Council will ensure Local Government Reorganisation will lead to the 

improvement of public services and delivery of stronger benefits for residents 

and businesses delivering on the Council’s priorities of People, Place and 

Prosperity 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 The Council has allocated £450,000 to support LGR, and this will be retained in 

order to fund any costs which the Council may incur itself and therefore outwith 

the eligibility criteria for the Cumbria-wide Implementation Reserve.  Therefore 

£1.6m will need to be identified to ensure that funds are available to support the 

implementation work, as set out in this report.  A review of financial reserves is 

undertaken as part of budget setting; this will be carried out by the S151 Officer 

supported by the Finance Team and the Senior Management Team.  The £1.6m 

will initially be drawn from the Contingency Reserve and if the source of funding 

changes an update will be reported to the Executive Committee.  

 

Legal  

7.2 It is necessary to have sufficient funding to deliver LGR.  It is also appropriate 

that there are relevant checks and controls on the use of the Council’s funds and 

these are to be put in place via the Memorandum of Understanding and the 

Scheme of Delegation referred to in the report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No that is not applicable to 
the recommendations of this report. 

 
Risk 

7.4 The key risks are contained in the body of the report. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Categories of Spend 

2  Eligibility Criteria 

 

Page 82

Agenda Item 8

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


Background Documents Available 

Name of 

Background 

document  

Where it is available  

1. Executive 

Committee 

19/2/2021 
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=484&Ver=4  

2. Council 

27/7/2021 
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=663&Ver=4 

  

Page 83

Agenda Item 8

https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=484&Ver=4
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=663&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

High Level Estimate of Implementation and Transformational Costs: 2 Unitaries, Cumbria

Potential Split

Implementation Reserve £

Implementation £2,266,667 Including election costs

External Support Costs £750,000 Legal support

£1,000,000 Audit & finance support (including VAT, treasury 

management, MTFP, council tax harmonisation)

£500,000 HR support

£1,000,000 Skills / learning costs

£2,250,000 Other specialist advice

Internal programme management £4,000,000 Programme Team, Organisational Design and Change 

Programme, Business analyst and business support for 

each Council

ICT Costs £4,000,000

Sub-total Transition Costs £15,766,667

Contingency 20% Transition Costs £3,153,333

Estimated Implementation Costs inc Contingency £18,920,000

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
 

 

Local Government Implementation Reserve – Criteria to determine eligibility 

(Draft) 

1. To deliver the creation of 2 unitary authorities within Cumbria, a single Local 

Government implementation reserve will be created. 

 

2. The following principles will be used to determine expenditure eligible to be met 

from the reserve: 

a) Costs of creating the shadow unitary authorities (test: would this cost 

be incurred if LGR were not occurring?); or 

b) Costs of establishing the safe and legal new unitary authorities 

including the aggregation and disaggregation of services, assets, 

liabilities and funding; or 

c) Costs of staff seconded to the LGR programme team. 

d) Examples of eligible expenditure against the reserve being, but not 

limited to, the following: 

i. Additional staff capacity to deliver the programme 

ii. Procurement of specialist support and advisory services 

iii. Communication and public consultation 

iv. Systems and Information Technology  

v. Election costs with regards to the two new unitary authorities 

vi. Running costs related to the shadow authorities 

vii. Rebranding, implementation and creating the two new unitary 

authorities 

 

3. The following costs will not be eligible for funding from implementation funding: 

i. Costs of continued functioning of Council services and operations to 

vesting day; or 

ii. Costs relating to transformation and investment to deliver savings; or 

iii. To clarify, costs of creation of new entities including parish or town 

councils ahead of decisions by shadow authorities are not eligible. 

iv. Costs beyond 1 April 2023 unless otherwise approved and falling into 

2) above. 

 

4. Any changes to the scope of the activity which can be funded from the reserve 

will only be made with the agreement of the County Council and all the District 

Councils.   

Page 87

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Council 

7 December 2021 

Community Governance Review/Charter Trustees 

 
 

Report from:   Chief Executive 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  To received feedback from the Working Group set up to look into conducting a 

Community Governance Review and to consider the practicalities of any such 

review, terms of reference and timetable. 

 

1.2 To consider the recommendations with regard to the establishment of Charter 

Trustees. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

 

It is recommended that Council:-  

 

(1) Receive the report from the Community Governance Working Group 

(CGWG); 

(2) Agree whether it wishes to conduct a Community Governance Review 

(CGR) in accordance with the Local Government and Public Involvement 

in Health Act 2007, for the unparished area of the Borough; 

(3) Resolve to advise the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 

Communities that it supports provision for the establishment of Charter 

Trustees for the Barrow Area to protect the Borough’s Civic history and 

identity; 

 

Subject to (2) being agreed: 

 

(4) Agree the Terms of Reference for the review as set out in Appendix 1 

and delegates to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chair of 

the CGWG, the power to make any necessary amendments to the 

Terms of Reference prior to publication ; 

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



(5) Instructs the Chief Executive to publish the final Terms of Reference 

for the CGR and delegates to the Chief Executive in consultation with 

the Chair of the CGWG the power to determine the nature, form and 

methodology of the consultation and authorises the commencement 

of the CGR consultation; 

(6) Confirm the terms of reference for the working group as attached at 

Appendix 2 to this report; and 

(7) Authorises a budget to undertake the CGR to include consultation and 

specialist activity associated with undertaking a CGR, including 

authority to the Chief Executive for the direct appointment of 

contractors/external resource to carry out the process and 

consultation elements of the CGR on behalf of the Council, to be 

resourced from the reserve set aside for Local Government 

Reorganisation. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

 

3.1 Council at its meeting on 19 October agreed to look into a Community Governance 

Review in accordance with the Local Government and Public Involvement in 

Health Act 2007 for the whole Borough/or the unparished area of the Borough; 

and to agree the establishment of a cross party Community Governance Working 

Group comprising of five members (three Labour and two Conservative Members), 

to consider the practicalities of any such review, Terms of Reference and timetable 

for CGR for recommendation to full council. 

 

3.2 Since that meeting the working group consisting of Councillors, Brook, Edwards, 

Husband, McClure and Morgan has been set up and has met on two occasions. 

 

3.3 As part of their consideration, the working group received an update on 

practicalities for consideration.  Since the Council meeting, discussions have been 

ongoing with Government Ministers on the draft Structural Changes Order where 

the possibility of a CGR has been raised and additional advice obtained.  The view 

has been expressed that the CGR process and making orders, etc. might be a 

significant distraction from the key tasks of closing down the existing councils and 

establishing the new unitaries.  There are significant implications in undertaking a 

CGR that need to be considered both for establishing the parish councils and the 

wider programme.  

 

3.4 Advice has also been received that whilst the CGR could be commenced a 

decision under the 2007 Act to give effect to the recommendation of the review 

would be made by the shadow executive of the shadow council and it would be 

important to ensure as far as is possible the exercise enjoys the support of the 

shadow council. 

 

3.5 The working group considered the issues, and the options that were open to the 

Council.  These included; 

Page 90

Agenda Item 9



a) to initiate a CGR to establish one or more parish councils in the Barrow 

area; 

b) to recommend that a Charter Trustees body be established, to take effect 

from April 2023, allowing the civic and ceremonial elements of the Borough of 

Barrow to be maintained until such time that a CGR can be successfully 

undertaken; 

c) do nothing and recommend that the new Shadow Authority undertake a 

review once established. 

 

3.6 The working group considered that there was cross party support to consider 

parishing of the unparished areas of the Borough, with a view in particular to see 

if there was support for a Barrow Town Council.  They are therefore recommending 

commencement of a CGR, draft terms of reference for which are attached at 

Appendix 1. 

 

Charter Trustees 

 

3.7 Of importance to many Members is the protection and continuation of the 

Borough’s Civic History and Council are aware through previous reports that there 

are rules which allow what are known as Charter Trustees.  It has been indicated 

by government Ministers that an Order can include Charter Trustees for the 

Borough to ensure that historic rights can be preserved.  

 

3.8 In England and Wales Charter Trustees are set up to maintain the continuity of a 

town charter or city charter after a district with the status of a borough or city has 

been abolished, until such time as a parish council is established.  Duties are 

limited to ceremonial activities such as the election of a Mayor, and various other 

functions depending upon local customs and laws. 

 

3.9 These would be catered for in supplementary legislation and create a group of 

trustees from whose number is elected a Mayor each year.  The trustees are non 

elected and initial appointments are likely to be made from the borough Councillors 

by the relevant Order.  Government Ministers have indicated that a mopping up 

order could be made to deal with such matters. 

 

3.10 Members are asked to consider whether they wish to advise the DLUHC that the 

Council supports provision being made for the establishment of Charter Trustees 

for the Barrow area to protect the Borough’s civic history whilst a Parish or Town 

Council is considered. 

 

CGR  

 

3.11 The Working Group are recommending alongside that that the Council 

commences a Community Governance Review with the Terms of Reference as 

set out in Appendix 1 to the Report.  The group recognises that the final decision 

on the recommendations would be for the new Westmorland and Furness Council, 

but believes that it is important to consult now and to feed in the outcome of the 

review to the new authority. 

Page 91

Agenda Item 9



 

3.12 If the Council accepts the recommendations then members are asked to confirm 

the Terms of Reference, and also agree the terms of reference for the Working 

Group  (appendix 2) to oversee the review moving forward. 

 

3.13 It is recommended that the Chief Executive be delegated authority to finalise the 

terms of reference and consultation process prior to them being published.   The 

time limit for undertaking the review commences when the terms of reference are 

formally published. 

 

3.14 A draft timetable is attached to the Terms of Reference with recommendations to 

the new Westmorland and Furness Shadow Council with the potential for elections 

to any new parish/town council in April 2023. 

 

3.15 There will be a resource requirement in undertaking the review and members are 

requested to set aside budget provision to enable this should they wish to proceed 

down this route.  It is also recommended that the direct appointment of 

contractors/external consultant be approved to support the process and 

consultation elements of the CGR, and that this be resourced from the reserve set 

aside for Local Government Reorganisation. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 If a CGR is commenced then there would be a full consultation process to seek 

views of the communities in considering establishment of any new Parish/Town 

Council. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The Alternative Options considered by the working group are set out in paragraph 

3.5. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 A CGR would enable consideration of where improvements can be made to the 

delivery of local governance within the Borough. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There will be finance, resource and procurement implications arising from any 

review.  A budget provision of £100K is requested for this to be drawn from the 

reserve set aside for Local Government Reorganisation. This is to enable 

meaningful consultation to take place with the electorate including the requirement 

to pull together consultation material, arrange consultation events, postage, as 

well as appointment of consultants/external resource as appropriate to support the 

Review. 

Page 92

Agenda Item 9



 

Legal  

7.1.1 Any review would be undertaken with regard to all relevant legislation and statutory 

guidance.   

7.1.2 The terms of reference of a community governance review are the terms on which 

the review is to be undertaken (Section 81(1) LGPIH 2007. 

7.1.3 If the review is concluded after the commencement of the transition period for LGR 

then it is the shadow authority who would make the decision on the final 

recommendations. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No but this would be considered 
as part of review process. 

 
Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

That attention and resources 

will be diverted on to the CGR 

instead of the ongoing LGR. 

Pressures on the 

programme of work for 

the LGR. 

Ensure appropriate 

resource available to 

undertaken. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

That recommendations may 

not be adopted by the new 

Westmorland and Furness 

Council. 

Recommendations not 

implemented, leading to 

no new parish councils.  

Ensure full engagement 

and consultation around 

the process. 

 

Contact Officers  

dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Draft Terms of Reference for Review 

2  Terms of Reference for Working Group 

 

  

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background 

document  

Where it is available  

1. Local Government 
and Public 
Involvement in 
Health Act 2007 

2. Local Government 
Boundary 
Commission for 
England – Guidance 
on Community 
Governance 
Reviews 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-

governance-reviews-guidance 

 

  

Page 94

Agenda Item 9



1 
 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW  
 

DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

Introduction 
 
Barrow Borough Council currently has 2 Parish and 1 Town Council and would like to 
consider whether to create any more, particularly for the town of Barrow.  This is in the 
context of the decision of the Secretary of State to create two new unitary authorities 
within Cumbria.  To create a new Town or Parish Council the Borough Council must 
undertake a Community Governance Review (CGR). 
 
Barrow Borough Council has resolved to undertake a CGR for the unparished area of 
the Borough. 
 
In undertaking the Review, the Council will be guided by Part 4 of the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (“the 2007 Act”), the relevant 
parts of the Local Government Act 1972, Guidance on CGRs, issued in accordance 
with section 100(4) of the 2007 Act, by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government and the Local Government Boundary Commission for England in March 
2010 and any other relevant statutory provisions.   
 
Section 81 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (“the 
2007 Act”) requires the Council to publish its Terms of Reference in a review, clearly 
setting out the focus of the review.  This document will fulfil this requirement. 
 
What is a Community Governance Review? 
 
A CGR can be a review of the whole, or part of the Borough to consider one or more 
of the following: 
 

 Creating, merging, altering or abolishing parishes; 

 The naming of parishes and the style of any new parishes; 

 The electoral arrangements for parishes, i.e. the ordinary year of election, 
council size, the number of councillors to be elected and parish warding; and  

 Grouping of parishes under a common parish council or de-grouping parishes. 
 
A CGR must: 
 

 Reflect the identities and interests of the communities of that area; and  

 Be effective and convenient. 
 
Consequently, a CGR must take into account: 
 

 The impact of community governance arrangements on community cohesion; 
and 

 The size, population and boundaries of a local community or parish. 
 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



2 
 

It is intended that the review will look at the unparished area of the Borough of Barrow-
in-Furness as identified on the attached plan with a view to the whole of the Borough 
being parished. 
 
In conducting a CGR, principal councils must consider other forms of community 
governance as alternatives or stages towards establishing parish councils. 
 
Who will undertake the Community Governance Review 
 
As a principal council, the Borough Council is responsible for undertaking any CGR in its 
electoral area. The Shadow/new Westmorland and Furness Council will approve final 
recommendations before a Community Governance Order is made. 
 
Who to contact in respect of the Review? 
 
Main contacts in respect of the CGR are Jon Huck, Democratic Services Manager who 
can be contacted on 01229 876312 or by email, jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk. 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
How the Council proposes to conduct consultations during the Review 
 

The Council has drawn up and published this Terms of Reference document, which 

provides the aims of the review, the legislation that guides the process, and the points 

that the Council views as important in this process. 

Before making any recommendations or publishing final proposals, the Council will 

take full account of the views of the local people and will comply with the statutory 

consultative requirements by: 

 Consulting local government electors for the area; 

 Consulting any other person or body (including a local authority) which appears 

to the Council to have an interest in the review; 

 Notifying and consulting with Cumbria County Council and the new 

Westmorland and Furness Shadow Authority; 

 Taking into account any representations received in connection with the review; 

 Notifying consultees of the outcome of the review; and 

 Publishing all decisions taken and the reasons for such decisions. 

Information about each stage of the review will be published on the Council’s website 

with key documents available to view at www.barrowbc.gov.uk and at Barrow Town 

Hall, Duke Street, Barrow LA14 2LD. 

We will also publicise the review on our website, through our internal communication 

channels and on our social media platforms to engage residents, community groups 

and stakeholders. 

 

Page 96

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

mailto:jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


3 
 

 

 

Review Timetable 

A CGR must generally be completed within a 12 month period from the day on which 

it commences.  The CGR begins when the Council publishes its Terms of Reference 

and concludes when it publishes the recommendations made in the review. 

The provisional timetable is attached as Appendix 1. 

ELECTORAL FORECASTS 

The electorate and electorate forecasts for Barrow Borough Council 

The Council has used the Register of Electors as at 1 October 2021 to provide existing 

parish and parish ward electorate figures (Appendix 2)  

In considering the electoral arrangements of the parishes in the area, the Council must 

consider any likely future change in the number or distribution of electors within five 

years from the date the review commences. 

Electorate forecasts have been prepared using all available information including 

current planning permissions and the Local Plan (Appendix 3). 

PRESENT STRUCTURE OF PARISHES AND THEIR ELECTORAL 

ARRANGEMENTS 

Present structure of parish governance in Barrow-in-Furness 

There are currently two parishes and one town council within the Borough. The 

majority of the Borough is currently unparished. Appendix 2 to this document shows 

the existing parish structure including parishes, parish wards, current electorate, 

number of councillors, ratios of electors to councils and borough wards. 

We will consult on plans to create a new Town Council for Barrow and any other new 

parish council which emerges from the consultation process. The consultation will not 

be looking to change any existing parish/town council boundaries.  

PARISH AREAS 

This part of a review covers the creation of new parishes, the alteration of parish 

boundaries and the abolition of existing parishes. 

Legislation requires that the Council must ensure that community governance with the 

area: 

 Reflects the identities and interests of the communities in the area; 

 Is effective and convenient; and 

Page 97

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4 
 

 Takes into account any other arrangements for the purposes of community 

representation or community engagement in the area. 

Parishes 

The Council considers that parishes should reflect distinctive and recognisable 

communities of interest, with their own sense of identity, ensuring that electors are 

able to clearly identify with the parish in which they are resident, creating a common 

interest in parish affairs which will, in turn, encourage participation in parish elections. 

The Government expects the creation rather than the abolition of parishes and this 

Council is intent on retaining the parishes within Barrow-in-Furness, and will look at 

the potential for creating new parishes. 

Boundaries 

It is considered by this Council that the current parish boundaries best reflect the areas 

between communities within the Borough. 

The pattern of community representation and community engagement 

During the review, the Council will have regard to any local residents’ associations, 

community forums or area committees, or such other community representation or 

engagement, that exist who make a distinct contribution to the community of that area. 

Viability 

The Council wishes to ensure that parishes are viable and that their precept enables 

them to actively and effectively promote the well-being of their residents and to 

contribute to the real provision of services in their areas in an economic and efficient 

manner.  Parishes outside of the main urban areas may have limited capacity to 

facilitate service provision and effective local government but may have a strong sense 

of community even in large, sparsely populated areas and arrangements in those 

areas which are supported by the residents of the parish can provide convenient local 

government. 

This review aims to ensure that the parishes within Barrow reflect community identity 

and interest and are viable as administrative units. 

Names and Styles 

The naming of parishes 

With regards to the names of parishes, the Council will endeavour to reflect existing 

local and historic place-names and will consider any ward names proposed by local 

interested parties. 

Page 98

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



5 
 

The Council will be mindful of section 76 of the Local Government Act 1972 with regard 

to the naming of parishes and subsequent notification along with sections 87 and 88 

of the 2007 Act and relevant guidance. 

Alternative styles 

Alternative styles for parishes were introduced by the 2007 Act which could replace 

the “parish” style.  However, only one of three styles can be adopted, i.e. community, 

neighbourhood or village.  In addition, the style of “town” is still available to a parish 

but for as long as a parish has an alternative style it will not be able to also have the 

status of a town and vice versa. 

If a new parish is to be created, the Council would make recommendations as to the 

geographical name of the new parish and whether or not it should have one of the 

alternative styles. 

ELECTORAL ARRANGEMENTS 

What are electoral arrangements? 

Electoral arrangements are the way in which a council is constituted for the parish and 

they are an important part of the review.  They comprise:- 

 The ordinary year in which elections are held; 

 The number of councillors to be elected to the council; 

 The division (or not) of the parish into wards for the purposes of electing 

councillors; 

 The number and boundaries of any such wards; 

 The number of councillors to be elected for any such ward; and 

 The name of any such ward 

Ordinary year of election 

The ordinary year of election is every four years as stated in the Local Government 

Act 1972, i.e. 2015, 2019 etc. Parish elections have coincided with the Borough 

Council elections so the costs of the elections can be shared. 

As a result of the establishment of the new Westmorland and Furness Council the 

elections to a Shadow Authority will take place in May 2022, with the next ordinary 

elections being 2027. Elections for Parish Councils are currently expected to take 

place in May 2023. 

Regard will be had to the structural changes order and potential changes to dates for 

elections. 

  

Page 99

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



6 
 

Parish Council or Parish Meeting? 

The Council has a duty to create, or not, a parish council and must follow the guidance 

laid down in legislation as follows: 

 Where the number of electors is 1,000 or more a parish council must be 

created; 

 Where the number of electors is 151-999 a parish council may be created, with 

a parish meeting being the alternative form of governance; and 

 Where the number of electors is 150 or fewer a parish council is not created. 

What considerations cover the number of parish councillors? 

The Government’s advice is that, as an important demographic principle, each 

person’s vote should be of equal weight so far as possible, having regard to other 

legitimate competing factors, when electing parish councillors.  This Council agrees 

with the principle and will take this into account during the review also having regard 

to the current and historical factors, along with the fact that there should be not less 

than five councillors for each parish council.  There is no maximum number and no 

rules relating to the allocation of councillors.   

Legislation dictates that the Council must have regard to the following factors when 

considering the number of councillors to be elected for a parish:- 

 The number of local government electors for the parish; and 

 Any change in that number which is likely to occur in the period of five years 

beginning with the day when the review starts. 

Parish Warding 

The Council is required to consider the following points when deliberating whether a 

parish should be divided into wards for the purposes of elections:- 

 Whether the number, or distribution, of the local government electors for the 

parish would make a single election of councillors impracticable or 

inconvenient; and 

 Whether it is desirable that any area or areas, of the parish should be separately 

represented on the council. 

The Government’s guidance is that warding of parishes may not be justified for largely 

rural areas based predominantly on a singe centrally-located village. Conversely, 

warding may be appropriate where a parish encompasses a number of villages and 

separate identities of where there has been urban overspill at the edge of a town into 

a parish. 

The Council will be mindful of community identities in both rural and urban parishes, 

with the latter possibly more likely to benefit from warding where community identity 

Page 100

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



7 
 

focuses on an area such as a housing estate and will endeavour to ensure that any 

warding arrangements reflect local circumstances and are clearly and readily 

understood by the electorate. 

It should be noted that ward elections should have merit, not only should they meet 

the two tests given above, but should also be in the interests of effective and 

convenient local government.  They should not be wasteful of a parish’s resources. 

The number and boundaries of parish wards 

In respect of the number and boundaries of any parish wards, the Council will take into 

account the criteria stated above, in particular the community identity and interests in 

an area, but also whether any particular ties or links might be broken by the drawing 

of particular ward boundaries. Parish wards must be easily identifiable and remain so 

in the future. 

Any recommendations which are intended to reflect community identities and links will 

be supported by relevant evidence. 

The number of councillors to be elected for parish wards 

The Council will take into account the following when considering the size and 

boundaries of any parish wards and the number of councillors to be elected for each 

ward: 

 The number of local government electors for the parish; and 

 Any change in the number, or distribution, of the local government electors 

which is likely to occur in the period of five years beginning with the day the 

review commences. 

The guidance advises that, as an important democratic principle, each person’s vote 

should be of equal weight so far as possible, having regard to other legitimated 

competing factors, when it comes to the election of councillors. Although there is no 

provision in legislation that each parish councillor should represent, as near as 

possible, the same number of electors, the Council considers that it is not in the 

interests of effective and convenient local government either for voters or councillors, 

to have significant differences in levels of representation between different parish 

wards. 

Likewise, the Council wishes to avoid the risk that, where one or more wards of a 

parish are over-represented by councillors, the residents of those wards (and their 

councillors) could be perceived as having more influence than others on the council.  

Consequently, during the review, the Council will show the ratios of electors to 

councillors that would result from any proposals. 

 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



8 
 

Naming of parish wards 

With regards to the names of parish wards, the Council will endeavour to reflect 

existing local or historic place-names and will consider any ward names proposed by 

local interested parties. 

REORGANISATION OF COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE ORDERS AND 

COMMENCEMENT 

Whilst the Borough Council is initiating the review the new shadow authority would be 

responsible for its implementation through adoption of a Reorganisation of Community 

Governance Order.  Copies of the Order, maps detailing the effects of the Order and 

the documents setting out the reasons for all decisions made whether for change or 

not change, will be deposited and published in the same manner as at each stage of 

the review, i.e. at, Barrow Town Hall, Duke Street, Barrow LA14 2LD and on its website 

at www.barrowbc.gov.uk. 

In accordance with the Government’s guidance, the Council will issue maps to 

illustrate each recommendation at a scale not less than 1:10,000 wherever possible.   

The Order will take effect on a date determined by the new shadow or new unitary 

authority as appropriate and any changes to electoral arrangements for existing 

parishes will come into force at the next ordinary elections for the parish council. 

A review is required to be concluded within twelve months of its commencement.  The 
review commences when the Council publishes its Terms of Reference and concludes 
when the recommendations which are made in the review are published.  There will 
have to be reasonable periods for the consultation with electors and stakeholders, for 
the consideration of any evidence which is presented in the representations and for 
the decision making.  
 
Any order to establish a Town Council should take effect on 1 April, following the date 
upon which the order is made.  The electoral arrangements for any new Town Council 
will come into force at the first elections following the making of the order.  An order 
should be made sufficiently far in advance to allow preparations for the conduct of the 
elections.  There may need to be interim arrangements for any Town Council which is 
created and this may involve the Councillors who sit on the Borough Council for the 
Barrow wards. 
 
Parish Council elections for Askam and Lindal and Town Council Elections for Dalton 
with Newton normally take place every four years at the same time as the elections 
for the Borough Council. The next elections for the Council would have been in 2023.  
The earliest time upon which a Town Council in Barrow could be established would be 
1 April 2023. 
 
  

Page 102

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


9 
 

CONSEQUENTIAL MATTERS 

General principles 

The Council notes that a Reorganisation Order may cover any consequential matters 

that appear to the Council to be necessary or proper to give effect to the Order, 

including:- 

 The transfer and management or custody of property; 

 The setting of precepts for new parishes; 

 Provision with respect to the transfer of any functions, property, rights and 

liabilities; and 

 Provision for the transfer of staff, compensation for loss of office, pensions and 

other staffing matters. 

In these matters, the Council will be guided by regulations that have been issued 

following the 2007 Act including those regarding the transfer of property, rights and 

liabilities which require that any apportionments shall use the population of the area 

as estimated by the proper officer of the Council as an appropriate proportion.  The 

Council also notes Regulation 3 of the Local Government Finance (New Parishes) 

Regulations 2008 regarding the establishment of a precept for a new parish and their 

requirements. 

The Council may recommend that the Local Government Boundary Commission for 

England makes alterations to ward boundaries to reflect any changes made at a parish 

level.  The Council notes that it will be for the Local Government Boundary 

Commission for England to decide if related alterations should be made as there will 

be a review of boundaries in connection with the creation of the new Unitary Council 

DATE OF PUBLICATION OF THESE TERMS OF REFERENCE 

These Terms of Reference will be published on * January 2022 

 

  

Page 103

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



10 
 

APPENDIX 1 - PROPOSED TIMETABLE 

Stage Action Timescales Approximate Planned 
date 

Commencement Council to consider 
Terms of Reference 

 Tuesday 7 December 
2021 

 Terms of Reference 
are published, and 
stakeholders notified 
with clear definition of 
remit of Review 

 January 2022 

Preliminary 
State 

Local briefings and 
meetings 

One month January to February 
2021 

Stage One Consultation period  
including 
questionnaires to the 
electorate on future 
arrangements under 
the Terms of 
Reference 

Three 
months 

February to April 2022 

Stage Two Consideration of 
submissions received 
– draft 
recommendations 
prepared 

Two 
months 

April - May 2022 

 Council meeting to 
consider initial draft 
recommendations 

 July 2022 

Stage Three draft 
recommendations are 
published and 
stakeholders notified. 
 
Further consultation 
with stakeholders 

 
Three 
months 

July – Sept 2022 

Stage Four  Consideration of final 
submission received 
 
Final 
recommendations 
prepared 
 
Final 
Recommendations 
considered by Council 
and published 
concluding the review 

Two 
months 

Sept to Oct 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nov 2022 

Stage Four Publication of the Re-
organisation Order 
according to the 
statutory guidelines 

  

Page 104

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



11 
 

APPENDIX 2 

 

Parish and Parish ward electorate figures 

 

Parish Seats Electors Per Seat 

DALTON WITH NEWTON TOWN 
COUNCIL - DOWDALES WARD 

3 1515 505 

DALTON WITH NEWTON TOWN 
COUNCIL - BECKSIDE WARD 

3 2014 671 

DALTON WITH NEWTON TOWN 
COUNCIL - ANTY CROSS AND 
NEWTON WARD 

4 2647 661 

ASKAM AND IRELETH PARISH 
COUNCIL 

8 2784 348 

LINDAL AND MARTON PARISH 
COUNCIL 

5 568 113 

 

Unparished Area of Barrow 

 

Ward Seats Electors Per Seat 

WALNEY NORTH 3 4260 1420 

WALNEY SOUTH 3 4041 1347 

BARROW ISLAND 1 1664 1664 

HINDPOOL 3 4228 1409 

CENTRAL 2 2755 1377 

ORMSGILL 3 4233 1411 

PARKSIDE 3 4155 1385 

RISEDALE 3 4467 1489 

HAWCOAT 3 4144 1381 

NEWBARNS 3 4629 1543 

ROOSECOTE 3 3902 1300 

 

Page 105

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



12 
 

APPENDIX 3 

 

Subnational population projections for Barrow-in-Furness 

 

Area Age 
Group 

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 

Barrow-in-
Furness 

All 
Ages 

66,504 66,290 66,076 65,848 65,617 65,392 

 

 

Page 106

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



APPENDIX 2 
 

Community Governance Review 
 

Terms of Reference of Member Working Group 
 
1. To consider whether a local (town) Council should be established for the town of 

Barrow working within the agreed Terms of Reference for the CGR;  
 

2. To  consult with the residents of Barrow, their representatives and those with 
interests in the town on the proposal to review the unparished areas and to 
create a Town Council; 
 

3. To consider whether community engagement would be improved, and the 
delivery of local services would be more effective and convenient if a Town 
Council were to be established in Barrow;  

4. To establish, consider and comment upon the practical issues in relation to the 
establishment of a Town Council, including its name, its location, the number of 
members, its initial costs, its officer corps and any other matter which is relevant 
to the establishment of the Town Council;  
 

5. To report to Council on its findings upon the Terms of Reference. 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	7 STATEMENT OF GAMBLING POLICY
	Appendix 1 - Draft Statement of Gambling Policy
	Appendix 2 - List of Consultees

	8 LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION - IMPLEMENTATION RESERVE
	Enc. 1 for Local Government Reorganisation - Implementation Reserve
	Enc. 2 for Local Government Reorganisation - Implementation Reserve

	9 COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW AND CHARTER TRUSTEES
	Enc. 1 for Community Governance Review and Charter Trustees
	Enc. 2 for Community Governance Review and Charter Trustees


